
 

 

0 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

1 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

 

 

CHAIRPERSON’S OVERVIEW 4 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 5 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OVERVIEW 6 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 8 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 9 

ORGANISATIONAL BACKGROUND 9 
CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT 10 
OUR STRATEGY 12 

RISK MANAGEMENT 13 

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 15 

DIRECTOR PROFILES 15 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 18 

COMPLIANCE 18 
SHAREHOLDER COMPACT 18 
THE BOARD’S MANDATE 18 
DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION/ORIENTATION 19 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES ENSURING DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND INDEPENDENCE 19 
LEGISLATIVE RECORD KEEPING 19 
BOARD ASSESSMENTS 20 
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 20 
BOARD COMMITTEES 20 
COMPANY SECRETARY 22 

FINANCE 23 

FINANCIAL OPERATING PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 25 
STATISTICS AT A GLANCE 28 
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 30 
ASSET MANAGEMENT 30 
REMARKS 31 
  

Table of Contents 



 

 

2 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 32 

DRINKING WATER SUPPLY SCHEMES 32 
WATER SECURITY/AVAILABILITY 35 
DRINKING WATER SUPPLY SCHEMES ASSESSMENT 38 
CURRENT WATER REQUIREMENTS 39 
INFRASTRUCTURE RELATED CHALLENGES 45 
WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM INTERVENTIONS 46 
CUSTOMERS 50 
DRINKING WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING 51 
WATER LOSS 58 
MAINTENANCE 60 
POWER CONSUMPTION 64 
RESEARCH AND INNOVATION 66 
RESEARCH AND INNOVATION PROJECTS 68 

ENGINEERING AND PROJECTS 76 

ORANGE RIVER REGION (ORR) 77 
MODDER RIVER REGION (MRR) 77 
CALEDON RIVER REGION (CRR) 78 
BLOEMFONTEIN HEAD OFFICE/OTHER 78 
FUTURE BUDGETS 78 
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 79 
PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED ON BEHALF OF DWA 79 

HUMAN RESOURCES 80 

ENTERPRISE PERFORMANCE 80 
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT & RECRUITMENT 81 
ORGANISATIONAL AND EMPLOYEE EFFECTIVENESS 81 
EMPLOYEE AND LABOUR RELATIONS 83 
BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION 83 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 84 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE ENHANCEMENT 84 
SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 85 
EXCHANGE PROGRAMME AND TWINNING PARTNERSHIP 88 
CHANGE MANAGEMENT 89 
EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAMMES 89 
WELLNESS INTERVENTIONS 89 
HEALTH, SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND QUALITY 90 
EMPLOYMENT EQUITY, GENDER EQUALITY AND WOMEN IN BLOEM WATER 90 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 91 
ACHIEVEMENTS AT A GLIMPSE 92 
 

Table of Contents 



 

 

3 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS            93 

 

REPORT ON PEFORMANCE AGAINST THE STRATEGIC PLAN      140 

 

 

 

  

Table of Contents 



 

 

4 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

Chairperson’s Overview 
 
President Jacob Zuma appointed the National Planning Commission in May 2010 to 
draft a vision and National Development Plan. This Plan is based on extensive research, 
consultation and engagement.  

 
Chapter 4 of the Plan mandates the water sector 
institutions and stakeholders to undertake the 
following: 
 
Ensure that all people have access to clean, 
potable water and that there is enough water 
for agriculture and industry, recognising the 
trade-offs in the use of water. 
 
Reduce water demand in urban areas to 15% 
below the business-as-usual scenario by 2030. 
 

• A comprehensive management strategy 
including an Investment Programme for 
water resource development, bulk water 
supply and wastewater management for 
major centres by 2012, with reviews every five 
years. 

 
• Create regional water and wastewater 

utilities, and expand mandates of the existing 
Water Boards (between 2012 and 2017). 

 
Bloem Water, a Water Board established in 1991, in 

terms of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) supports the National Development 
Plan, and in collaboration with its Shareholder, the Department of Water Affairs, and its 
anchor clients in the Free State Province have embarked on the following initiatives: 
 

· Participation in the development of the National Water Resource Strategy 2 
(NWRS 2), 

· Development and finalization of the Greater Bloemfontein Reconciliation 
Strategy Study, 

· Implementation of interventions as proposed in the Greater Bloemfontein 
Reconciliation Strategy, (which includes Water Conservation and Water 
Demand Management in the Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality), 

· Agreement for fulfilling Implementing Agent role for water infrastructure 
projects in the Free State in support of Water Service Authorities, between 
Bloem Water, Free State Province and Department of Water Affairs, 

· A report to increase the current service area, as well as offer service in the 
gazetted areas. 
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The water sector also acknowledges that there is a need for collaboration with other 
stakeholders in managing, monitoring and protecting the country’s water resources in a 
sustainable way while allowing for economic growth. In pursuit of this noble idea, Bloem 
Water is working together with the Provincial Government and the Department of Water 
Affairs to come with water infrastructure road map. 
 
The Board of Directors shall continue to guide and lead this Institution through sound 
Board direction and good Governance. Our strategic intent of excellent service delivery 
shall remain unfettered as Bloem Water continues to invest in infrastructure to assure 
quality water service delivery, and continue to build reputation by providing a seamless 
and extensive service to our customer base. 
 

Acknowledgements 
I thank our customers, suppliers and other business associates for their valued support. In 
addition, I am also appreciative of our relations with our various stakeholders and 
liaisons with other Governmental institutions and Municipal clients. 
 
We also will like to send our gratitude to our former Chief Executive; Dr B Malakoane for 
the immense contribution to brand Bloem Water, and we wish him similar success in his 
new portfolio as the MEC of Health in the Free State Province. 
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Chief Executive’s overview 
 
South Africa is not well endowed with abundant fresh water resources. In fact, it is 
regarded as the 30th most water scarce country in the world. Despite this major 
challenge, we have thus far done great in harnessing this resource in support of a strong 
economy and a vibrant society. This was and still is achieved through effective water 
resources planning, infrastructure development and effective service delivery. Free 
State province is therefore part of the picture in attempting to deliver this resource 

efficiently and effectively. 
 
This report will focus on the achievements and 
challenges met throughout the year under 
review. Financial sustainability became a 
cornerstone of all activities undertaken by Bloem 
Water during this year. This was reflected in the 
net profit of R63 123 000 from the total water 
sales of R376 954 267. This was enhanced by 
other activities such as rendering services as 
Implementing Agent for the Department of 
Water Affairs. 
 
In an attempt to reach out to communities that 
Bloem Water serves, it became very important 
that the relationships with stakeholders such as 
Municipalities and communities are 
strengthened. The full account payment of our 
main stakeholder, Mangaung Metropolitan 
Municipality, was settled during this year through 
this improved relationship.  
 
Working together with the Department of Water 
Affairs and all stakeholders, Bloem Water is 

engaged in improving water infrastructure 
through the implementation of a reconciliation study aimed at identifying possible 
projects to meet the future water demands of the areas that the Board serves. Amongst 
the projects recommended are the Welbedacht/Knellpoort bi-directional pipeline, 
booster Pump Station on Wepener take-off and Dewetsdorp pipeline. The designs are 
currently underway for all above-mentioned projects. The work has already 
commenced for the designs of the 35 km pipeline leading up to the Brandkop reservoir 
on the Welbedacht/Bloemfontein main pipeline. The Rustfontein/Botshabelo pipeline is 
at an advanced stage of design, and construction is anticipated to commence in the 
financial year 2013/14. The projects mentioned above will address the current backlog 
and challenges identified in the reconciliation study. 
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Amongst others, the following projects have been completed and have improved 
water service delivery for the communities: 
 

· OK reservoir in ThabaNchu, 
· Re-commissioning of four boreholes in Van Stadensrus, 
· Yorksford bulk water supply, 
· Bethulie gravity line, 

 
In an attempt to contribute to the development and upliftment of communities within 
areas of service, various social corporate initiatives are pursued and implemented. 
These include School Sanitation Programme, Water Conservation and Demand 
Management awareness. 
 
In order to ensure continuous improvement in service offering, benchmarking initiatives 
were identified and implemented. Twinning with other Water Boards within and outside 
the country is an example of this initiative.  
 
Continuous engagement with organised labour has ensured a harmonised working 
relationship with Management. This is evidenced by successful conclusion of wage 
negotiations and minimal disputes. This is enhanced by the ongoing training of all 
personnel in areas of different specialities. 
 
The establishment of a risk management office has contributed to the ever-committed 
Departments in achieving a continuous unqualified report. 
 
The non-payment of some Municipalities continues to be a mayor challenge. This 
tendency is a major concern and if not resolved on time it will be impossible for these 
Municipalities to pay the exorbitant amounts that are accumulating. The relevant 
stakeholders such as National and Provincial Treasuries, and relevant Departments are 
being approached including the Municipalities themselves to resolve this matter 
amicably.  
 
The aged water infrastructure with the increase water demands remains a constant 
challenge. In as much as Bloem Water is addressing this challenge, funding the needed 
infrastructure is a major concern that requires all affected stakeholders to come 
together in finding a solution. The ongoing maintenance activities are prioritised to 
prolong this infrastructure’s useful life while other interventions are considered. 
 
I wish to thank the Board, stakeholders, Management cadre and all officials of Bloem 
Water for their commitment and support during the year under review. 
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In conclusion, Bloem Water remains committed to sustainable development and 
economic growth as well as serving our customers with dedication in ensuring effective 
and sustainable water service delivery. We remain united in delivering on our public 
service mandate in support of the Department of Water and Environmental Affairs 
objectives in proactively engaging and implementing various flagship infrastructure and 
social investment projects. 
 

Compliance Certificate 
We believe that the reporting content of the 2012/2013 Annual Report is sufficient, 
appropriate and complies to relevant legislative prescripts, as well as those guidelines 
provided by the Department of Water and Environmental Affairs. 
 
We remain forever grateful to our Board of Directors without whom we could not be an 
achiever that we are. Their insightful leadership remains a beacon of inspiration to us to 
continue to be representative of their fiduciary responsibilities as implementers of their 
decisions. 
 

 

 

DR L MOOROSI 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
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Office of the Chief Executive 
 
 
Organisational Background 
The bottom line for any organisation, barring financial performance and sustainability is 
constant development from within. The financial well-being of Bloem Water is therefore 
portrayed in our Financial Statements and Annual Report. Universally, shareholders are 
now seeking commitment from organisations by demanding sound reporting on not 
only the organisation’s financial status, but also on its commitment to the environment 
and social issues. This is a requirement placed on Bloem Water by the shareholder being 
the Department of Water and Environmental Affairs. 
 
Bloem Water, formerly known as the Bloem Area Water Board, was established in 1991 in 
terms with the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997). The primary aim for establishing the 
Water Board was to operate the Caledon/Bloemfontein Government Water Scheme, 
constructed to supply purified water to the Municipal areas of Bloemfontein, Bainsvlei, 
Bloemspruit, Botshabelo and Dewetsdorp.  The name was officially changed from 
“Bloem Area Water Board” to “Bloem Water” in 1994. 
 
Bloem Water is, in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999, 
Schedule 3B, a National Government business entity, which reports to the Executive 
Authority, represented by the Department of Water and Environmental Affairs.  
 
During 1995 the service area of Bloem Water was extended to include the southern Free 
State, adding towns such as Bethulie and Philippolis. In 1996 the Minister of Water and 
Environmental Affairs further extended the area of supply to include the ThabaNchu 
district, which added the responsibility to supply water directly to the inhabitants of rural 
areas, in addition to the formal urban areas. More recently the service area has been 
extended to include parts of the Eastern Free State up to the town of Excelsior. Today 
Bloem Water supplies water to a population in excess of 1.2 million people in the areas 
referred to above. 
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Corporate Social Investment 
Corporate Social Investment is no longer a loose arrangement, but a targeted intention 
to increase the need for effective and sustainable reporting on financial commitment 
meant for advancing social interests and community well-being. 
 
The Toilet Revolution Programme has seen the improvement in health and hygiene in 
schools and bred the consciousness of water conservation through the WASH project 
among the other eight (8) projects. To this end Bloem Water participated in a number of 
projects that give effect to meaningful Corporate Social Investment. These initiatives 
include the celebration of World Toilet Day which is held in November each year. During 
this event, the schools which have maintained hygiene to the highest standard are 
rewarded in a form of monetary prizes in order to advance other areas earmarked for 
hygiene. The upcoming celebration will be held at the school which was awarded the 
first prize. 
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The Office of the Chief Executive has entrenched various employee volunteering 
initiatives whereby employees support causes such as abused children, HIV/AIDS 
charities, the elderly the orphans and vulnerable children. The Office of the Chief 
Executive therefore encourages employees to become involved in charitable activities 
by providing their time, energy, talent and leadership skills to the benefit of the 
community we serve. Bloem Water’s volunteering initiatives aim to support and 
showcase the efforts of employees, thereby instilling a culture of employee involvement, 
compassion and caring from an internal perspective. 
 
As an Organisation, Bloem Water recognises its impact on the community it serves. The 
way we conduct business dictates the footprint we leave behind. Bloem Water strives to 
holistically address issues of sustainable development, the challenge always being to 
convert enthusiasm into action by way of: 
 

• Realising that the upliftment and alleviation of poverty does not only reside with 
Government but with each and every one of us. 

• The School Toilet Revolution Programme in which Bloem Water challenges 
partners and stakeholders to join in and to make a difference in our community 
schools. 

• Education: Raising water awareness on sanitation, hygiene and water 
conservation through school visits to our Plants. 

• Health and Hygiene Programme: Hygiene services implemented in 25 schools in 
the Free State Province 

 
Bloem Water’s objective in terms of Corporate Social Responsibility and Investment, in 
the form of these projects is aimed at the nurturing of human capital, enthusing 
knowledge and education, overall empowerment, collective support and learning to 
bring about change for a better and brighter future for all within our democracy and in 
the sustainment of a life-giving resource. 
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To create a leading, value-driven, effective and responsive Institution using adaptive 
best practice methods in anticipating tomorrow’s problems today. 

1. Management financial affairs to meet current and future obligations 

2. Build, operate and maintain infrastructure 

3. Ensuring sustainable and equitable water resource management 

4. Transformation/business processes/research & development 

5. Engaging in strategic partnerships 

 
 
 

Our Strategy 
 

Our Vision 
 
 
 
Our Mission 

 
 

 
Our Strategic Goals are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Our Values 
Bloem Water commits itself to the following values that guide and direct all interactions 
with internal and external stakeholders: 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Corporate Social 
Responsibility 

Governance Equality Responsiveness 

Office of the Chief Executive 
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Risk Management 
 
Bloem Water has adopted an enterprise-wide approach to risk management and this 
approach is documented in the Risk Management Policy and strategy which is 
implemented by Management.  
 

The Board carries out its risk governance responsibility for 
risk management through the Fraud Prevention and Risk 
Management Committee. This Committee Charter was 
reviewed and updated to incorporate roles and 
responsibilities for fraud prevention. The Anti-fraud and 
Corruption Policy and Plan will be fully implemented in 
the next financial year.  
 
The risk management function supports implementation 
of Bloem Water's Risk Management Policy, facilitates and 
coordinates risk management activities, and prepares 
quarterly risk reports for Executive Management and 
Audit Committee. 
 
During the period under review, the Risk Management 
Policy was reviewed and approved by the Board. It 
documents the Board’s risk management responsibilities 
and objectives for risk management.  This provides a 
framework for Executive Management to implement the 
enterprise-wide risk management process within Bloem 
Water.  

 
Bloem Water developed a Risk Management Framework based on principles and 
guidelines from National Treasury’s Risk Management Framework and ISO 31000. The 
framework provides direction and guidance to strengthen risk management practices 
within Bloem Water and consists of a Risk Management Policy, Strategy and processes 
approved by the Board through the Risk and Audit Committee. 
 
This new framework will be integrated across the Organisation in the coming year, 
providing an integrated, enterprise-wide, consistent, transparent and efficient approach 
for identifying, assessing, managing, mitigating and reporting all key risks.  
 
A strategic risk assessment workshop was conducted for identification of strategic risks. 
Departmental Risk Registers were reviewed and progress on implementation of Action 
Plans was reported on a quarterly basis to the Audit Committee focusing on risks above 
tolerance levels. Risk assessments at operational and project level will commence in the 
next financial year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Nkagiseng Motlhaolwa 
Risk Management Officer 
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Our Board of Directors 
 

The Board of Directors’ term of office expired in April 2013 and has been extended until 
a new Board is appointed. 
 

Director Profiles 
(Appointed: April 2009) 

Mr TB Phitsane 
(Acting Chairperson to the Board of Directors and Chairperson to the Finance 
Committee of Bloem Water) 
 
Education and Background 
Diploma in Education, BA Economics, MBA from UFS, 
Executive Leadership with the University of Stellenbosch and 
Human Resource Strategy in Singapore. 
 
Teacher, Human Resources Director: Free State Legislature, 
Deputy Secretary: Free State Legislature, currently the 
Secretary of Free State Legislature.  Former member and 
Chairperson of the Permit Board of the Free State and 
National RTMC (Department of Public Works and Roads), is a 
member of the Sanlam Board of Trustees and also a member 
of the Institute of Directors in Southern Africa and the PACC.  

 
 

Mr N Mokhesi 
(Non-Executive Director and Chairperson to Bloem Water’s Audit Committee) 
 
Education and Background 
B. Com, B. Compt. (Accounting and Auditing); B. Com Hons 
from UNISA and M. Com Financial Management from RAU. 
 
Part-time teacher, Senior Manager: FDC, Executive Director: 
Mphatlalatsane Geographical Solutions (Pty) Ltd, 
Independent SMME Business Consultant, CFO: Thabo 
Mofutsanyane District Municipality, CFO: Maluti–a–Phofung 
Local Municipality, Municipal Manager: Maluti-a-Phofong, 
CFO: Centlec, CFO: Department of Police, Roads and 
Transport and currently is the HOD for the Department of 
Human Settlements.  
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Dr J van der Merwe 
(Non-Executive Director and Chairperson to Bloem Water’s Human Resources 
Committee) 
 
Education and Background 
B.Sc, M.Sc in Geology, PhD in Geohydrology from UFS, did 
research at the University of Arizona in the USA, specialising in 
water management and engineering. 
 
Technical Official in the Department of Geology UFS, Lecturer 
and senior Lecturer in Geohydrology at UFS. Head of the 
Department of Civil Engineering at the Technikon of the Free 
State, Deputy Director: Department of Water Affairs and 
Forestry, Water Quality and Geohydrology in the Free State 
Region, Deputy Director: Strategic Support from the 
Department of Water Affairs. He retired in 2008. He is an 

Affiliated Researcher at the Institute of Ground Water Studies at the UFS, a member of 
the Water Institute of Southern Africa and a member of the Ground Water Division of the 
Geological Society of South Africa. As one of the representatives of Bloem Water, he is 
Vice-Chairperson of the Modder-Riet Catchment Management. He has an outstanding 
merit award with honorary life membership from the Geological Society of South Africa. 
He is a Committee member of the central branch of the Water Institute of Southern 
Africa and serves on the Steering Committees of two Water Research Commission 
projects. 
 

Ms MSS Maboe 
(Non-Executive Director to Bloem Water) 
 
Education and Background 
BSc Ed Degree from the University of Bophuthatswana, 
Leadership qualification in Executive Municipal 
Management from the UFS, MA Degree with a Major in 
Counselling from the University of Northern IOWA, USA. 
 
Communications Officer at Thabo Mofutsanyana District 
Municipality, Municipal Manager to the Masilonyana Local 
Municipality, Acting Registrar and Executive Director: 
Student Development and Support Service at University of 
the Free State Qwaqwa Campus, Head of Department: 
Social Development. She is a Psychologist by profession, 
and has served in the Free State Development Corporation 

(FDC) and Sedibeng Water. She served on Executive Committee Forum of African 
Women Educationist, SA (FAWESA), is a member of the South Africa Association of Senior 
Student Affairs Professionals (SAASSAP) and member to the National Association of 
Student Development Practitioners (NASDEV). She is also a member of Southern African 
Fundraising Institute (SAIF). 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
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Mr L Bomela 
(Independent Non-Executive Director to Bloem Water) 
 
Education and Background 
BProc and LLM qualifications and is currently reading for an LLB 
Degree. 
 
Public Prosecutor with the Department of Justice and 
Constitutional Development, State Attorney, Attorney of the High 
Court and a part-time and sole Director of Bomela’s Attorneys. 
Director: Legal Services at the Department of Health, Free State. 
He is currently the Company Secretary of Centlec (SOC) Limited. 
Rights, with the Department of Justice and Constitutional 
Development, partner at Du Toit Bomela Attorneys and as a 
Director: Legal Services at the Department of Health, Free State. 
 

  

Board of Directors 



 

 

18 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

Corporate Governance 
 
We are proud to report that our Governance structures are becoming more effective 
day-by-day to ensure Bloem Water complies with all recommended Governance 
practices. 
 
Risk Management has been identified as a key tool to good governance in order to 
apply ethics and values in increasing and enhancing business performance, the 
protection of the Organisation’s corporate identity, compliance and focus on 
shareholder relations.  
 
Compliance 
Bloem Water is mindful of all applicable legislation and is committed to complying with 
them all. The Bloem Water Board has taken conscious steps to improve governance 
standards by striving to adhere to the King III Report (Corporate Governance chapter). 
Bloem Water in a quest to comply created and filled the positions of Company 
Secretary and Chief Risk Officer during the year under review. 
 
Shareholder Compact 
The Shareholder Compact is an agreement between a Public Entity and the Executive 
Authority. It entails the key performance measures and indicators that the Public Entity 
commits to. A Shareholder Compact is concluded in compliance with Regulation 20 of 
the Treasury Regulations of the PFMA, which stipulate that on an annual basis the Public 
Entity should conclude a Shareholder Compact in consultation with its Accounting 
Authority. 
 
Bloem Water has in the year under review concluded a Shareholder Compact with the 
Minister of Water Affairs. The compliance with the Shareholder Compact is reported on 
a quarterly basis by submission of quarterly performance reports to the Minister.  
 
The Board’s Mandate 
The Board operates in terms of a mandate set out as per the Water Services Act, 
Act 108 of 1997 and various other legislation as well as the King Code. 
Key functions of the Board include, but are not limited to: 
 

· Determining the strategic direction of Bloem Water. 
· Approving Strategic Plans and Programmes. 
· Monitoring the implementation of Strategic Plans and Programmes. 
· Monitoring the performance of Bloem Water from a financial, human resources, 

environmental and technical performance perspective. 
· Annually reassessing the Board Committees’ mandate by reviewing each 

Committee’s Charter. 
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· Annually reassessing the strategic direction of the Company by gauging 
progress in relation to the implementation plans following the set of strategic 
objectives defined by the Board. 

· Delegating to the Chief Executive and Executive Management the authority to 
manage the Organisation in accordance with the 

· delegated authorities approved. 
· Defining levels of materiality and evaluating as well as reporting on the reasons 

for issuing a going concern statement. 
 

Directors’ Induction/Orientation 
Bloem Water’s Induction Programme is designed to provide best practice inducting and 
supporting new Directors and further, to equip these individuals with the information and 
tools they need to become effective and valuable in their role as Director as soon as 
possible. The focus is more on applicable legislation to make the new Directors 
understand more their fiduciary roles and responsibilities. 
 
Corporate Governance Practices ensuring Directors’ interests and 
independence 
A Declaration of Interest Register is available for inspection from Bloem Water’s Head 
Office. A Declaration of Interest insertion is a standing item on each Agenda of every 
meeting of the Board ensuring that Directors and Executive Management declare any 
interest they may have as prescribed by the Water Services Act, Act 108 of 1997 and the 
new Companies Act, Act 71 of 2008, and as directed by sound Corporate Governance 
principles encapsulated within the King Code. Employees of Bloem Water are also 
encouraged to declare gifts received and any interests on a regular basis. Director 
independence from an executive perspective is ensured through the separation of the 
role of the Chief Executive and the Chairperson, the absence of the Chief Executive’s 
right to vote and the right of Directors to seek independent professional advice on the 
affairs of the Company at any given time. 
 
Legislative Record Keeping 
As prescribed by legislation, the following statutory records are kept and maintained by 
the Board Secretariat at Bloem Water’s Head Office and is available for inspection: 
 

· Register of Directors 
· Declaration of Interest Register 
· Gift Register 
· Attendance Register 
· Minute Books 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Governance 
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BOARD

AUDIT
Mr N Mokhesi
(Chairperson)

Dr J van der Merwe
Mr L Bomela

FINANCE
Mr TB Phitsane
(Chairperson)

Mr N Mokhesi
Ms MSS Maboe

HUMAN RESOURCES
Dr J van der Merwe

(Chairperson)

Ms MSS Maboe
Mr L Bomela

CHAIRPERSONS
Mr TB Phitsane
(Chairperson)

Mr N Mokhesi
Dr J van der Merwe

 
 
Board Assessments 
The Board of Directors underwent a Board evaluation process conducted by the 
Institute of Directors. The process was welcomed by all participants and proved to be an 
exercise well worth undertaking. It is axiomatic to assess the Board’s performance in 
carrying out its responsibilities, therefore the Board must have a firm understanding of 
just what its responsibilities are and how it has performed. Where areas of improvement 
were identified, research will be done to enhance this vital process in terms of 
Governance practices. 

 
Directors Remuneration 
Directors are remunerated in accordance to a set policy formulated by the Department 
of Water and Environmental Affairs. Director meeting attendance and fees paid during 
the year under review is contained in the audited Financial Statements of this 
document. 
 
Board Committees 
Committees of the Board assist the Board to efficiently advance the business of the 
Board. In tandem with the aforesaid, Committees are able to demonstrate that Director 
responsibilities are being adequately and properly discharged. 
 
The Board has created procedures and proper written mandates or Charters for its 
Committee to operate in. 
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The Chairpersons Committee is mandated to oversee and ensure Board capacity 
development, Board performance, integrated planning, stakeholder relations and 
performance evaluations. 
 
The Audit Committee is responsible for internal and external audit, materiality, fraud and 
risk management. 
 
The Finance Committee’s mandate is to oversee financial control, policy development, 
supply chain management, budgeting and  
the evaluation of all major projects. 
 
The Human Resources Committee – The primary focus of this Committee is that of 
developing and implementing a competitive Human Resource Strategy and Plan which 
can attract, retain and develop the best possible skills to support business performance. 
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Company Secretary 
 

Bloem Water, in compliance with the 
Companies Act, Act 71 of 2008, created the 
position of Company Secretary. The key 
functions of the Company Secretary are to 
provide support and guidance on governance 
issues to the Board. Further the Company 
Secretary, in conjunction with Board Secretariat, 
provide secretariat services to the Board and its 
operations by conducting continuous 
governance updates and legislative 
notifications pertaining to good governance 
practices and advising on matters of 
compliance, thus ensuring and promoting 
ethical business practices and creating an 
overall ethical corporate environment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Fezeka Ntlemeza 
Company Secretary 
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Finance 
 

Bloem Water is operating as a bulk water distributor and is 
rendering services of operation and maintenance, support 
and managerial services. The water industry is one of the 
most capital-intensive industries and a significant portion of 
overall expenditure is for financing infrastructure. The Board 
of Bloem Water implemented a capital levy and has built 
up reserves during previous years to fund refurbishment 
and investing in new infrastructure. 
 
Bloem Water has been involved in refurbishments and 
upgrading of assets over the recent years. The 
Organisation revises its CAPEX Programme on a regular 
basis to ensure that the CAPEX requirements of 
infrastructure are optimally utilised. It enables Bloem Water 
to operate optimally and comply within financial directives 
and guidelines from the Department of Water Affairs and 
National Treasury. 
 
 

 
The Organisation is the Implementing Agent for the Department of Water Affairs on 
various projects in the area. The Finance Department is responsible for the financial, 
budget and supply chain management sections. 
 
These functions are mainly guided by the following legislative prescripts, directives and 
regulations in the execution of its duties: 
 

· Water Service Act No. 108 of 1997 
· Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999 
· Municipal Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 
· Preferential Procurement Policy Framework, Act No. 5 of 2000 
· Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act No. 53 of 2003 
· Supply Chain Management Framework 
· Relevant directives issued by the Department of Water Affairs and National 

Treasury 
 
The Financial Statements are prepared in a manner required by the Public Finance 
Management Act 1999, the Water Services Act 1997, SA Statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice and also incorporates responsible disclosures in line with 
the accounting practices of Bloem Water. The Financial Statements are based on 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable, 
prudent judgements and estimates. 
  

Ockie Stadler 
Chief Financial Officer 
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The total bulk water sales for raw water were higher and treated water lower than the 
volumes budgeted for. The Bulk Water Supply Contract between Mangaung 
Metropolitan Municipality, as the main customer, and Bloem Water regulates water 
supply to the Bloemfontein area and the raw water supplied was lower than the 
budgeted volumes, whereas the treated water supplied was higher than budgeted 
volumes. 
 
The Contracts with other Municipalities similarly regulates the bulk supply volumes. 
 
The Financial Statements reflect historical costs where the following were accounted for: 
 
Description % of gross income Amount of gross income 

(R’000) 

Bulk water sales 95,2 376 954 

Finance income 4,2 16 706 

Other income 0,6 2 224 

 

Description % of gross expenditure Amount of gross expenditure 

(R’000) 

Operating expenditure 95,7 318 458 

Finance cost 4,3 14 303 

 

Bloem Water achieved robust results for the 2013 financial year during a challenging 
economic environment. 
 

The 2013 profit margin is higher than achieved in prior financial years. This increase is as a 
result of higher revenues generated, operational efficiencies and reprioritisation of 
expenditure. The effect of the revised IAS19 will result in a R60 million effect (R19 million 
asset changing to a R40 million liability). Profits further increased cash generated from 
operating activities which will contribute to capital programmes and reduce the finance 
cost effect of interest-bearing borrowings. 
 
Despite constant close liaison between the Board and Management, the continuous 
application of effective cost control, provision for bad debt and a strict budget policy, a 
surplus of R63,1 million occurred. An amount of R0,878 million was transferred to the 
Insurance Fund, hence the retained earnings totalled R533,9 million at the end of the 
financial year. 
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Input cost increase such as electricity, chemicals and specialised equipment have a 
material impact on the operational cost, budget and tariff increases. Budgets had to be 
realigned to accommodate unforeseen movements in the market place. 
 
There will be major capital requirements on infrastructure and refurbishment required 
during the next 5 years. The funding requirements over this period are projected to be in 
excess of R500 million. Bloem Water will continue to fund requirements in the most cost-
effective way and diversify its sources of funding which encompass development 
funding and banking institutions. 
 
Financial operating performance overview 
Bloem Water’s positive bottom line performance in the current financial year can be 
attributed to robust financial control measures and efficient operating expenditure. The 
main operating cost drivers remains to be water purchased, chemicals, energy and staff 
cost. 
 
The following graphs illustrate the expenditure trend for the main cost drivers: 
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Bloem Water is concerned about the increase in outstanding debt and possible bad 
debt and has continued with Section 44 MFMA processes. The Board is continuing with 
negotiations in respect of the remaining arrears accounts. The outstanding accounts of 
major local Municipalities deteriorated with the balance at year-end as pertaining to 
the beginning of the year. Various sessions were arranged where the national and 
provincial offices of Treasury, Water Affairs and Auditor-General participated. 
 

The challenges that existed with Kopanong Local Municipality over the last few years 
were not resolved, although partial payment was received on recent accounts. A 
format of payment was agreed upon when the Municipality receives the equitable 
share, although the Municipality made little effort to comply with these conditions and 
payment has mostly not been made in accordance with the Agreement. The payment 
of accounts by Naledi Local Municipality improved with payment of current accounts 
during the financial year, although marginal progress is made on the arrear accounts 
with the support of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA). 
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Statistics at a Glance 
 

Future water demand (sales) - (Million Kℓ per year) 

 2014 2015 2018 

Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality 83,8 85,7 91,7 

Naledi Local Municipality 1,8 1,9 2,0 

Kopanong Local Municipality 5,2 5,3 5,6 

Mantsopa Local Municipality 0,2 0,2 0,2 

Other small customers 2,0 2,0 2,1 

TOTAL 93,1 95,2 101,7 

 

Consumer quantity untreated water sold (Kℓ) 

 2011/2012 2012/2013 

Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality 18 572 965 17 559 520 

Other 10 847 2 145 

TOTAL 18 583 812 17 601 665 

 

Consumer quantity treated water sold (Kℓ) 

 2011/2012 2012/2013 

Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality 62 615 698 68 498 881 

Kopanong Local Municipality 5 319 265 5 359 420 

Naledi Local Municipality 1 348 786 1 191 923 

Mantsopa Local Municipality 157 228 174 610 

Other (Bulk) 1 955 397 1 781 079 

TOTAL 71 396 374 77 005 913 
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Performance and Measurement 
 
 2011/2012 2012/2013 Standard 
LIQUIDITY 
Current ratio 4.08 2,25 2,56 
Debt-equity  0.41 0,43 0,69 
SOLVENCY 
Debt service/interest cover ratio  5.65 5,41 1,44 
Debt ratio 0.29 0,2 0,32 
PROFITABILITY 
Current asset turnover 1.01 1,14 1,64 
Return on assets 0.09 0,06 0,04 
Asset turnover 0.34 0,35 0,35 
Gross margin % based on operating profit 25.10% 16,11% 11,78% 
Gross margin % based on gross income 92.23% 93,1% 93,7% 
ACTIVITY/OPERATING 
Fixed asset turnover 0.52 0,51 0,45 
Inventory turnover 1.29 0,98 3,6 
Debtors collection period 85.10 48,3 42,9 
Accounts receivable 4.92 7,55 8,51 
Working ratio 0.75 0,84 0,88 
Controllable working ratio 0.56 0,67 0,70 
Weighted Average Cost per Capital 0.06 0,07 0,08 
SURPLUS RATIOS 
Accounting surplus/fixed assets 0.13 0,09 0 
Accounting surplus/revenue 0.26 0,17 0,26 
BUSINESS CREDIT RISK 
EBIT interest coverage 4.58 4,25 4,58 
EBITDA interest coverage 6.66 6,99 6,66 
Cash from operations 0.29 0,61 0,23 
Return on average total capital 0.12 0,08 0,04 
EBITDA/Sales 0.37 0,27 0,25 
Internal Financing Ratio 0.29 0,24 0,39 
Financial leverage or Debt 0.29 0,24 0,39 
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Important Statistics 

Systems Tariffs (excluding VAT) 

 Cents 

per Kℓ 

Bulk consumers 

(Bloemfontein, Botshabelo, Bethulie, Dewetsdorp, Edenburg, Excelsior, Fauresmith, 

Gariep, Jagersfontein, Phillippolis, Reddersburg, Springfontein, Trompsburg, Wepener 

and others) 

394 

Water research levy (Excluding VAT) 4,6 

 
 

Supply Chain Management 
Bloem Water complies with the relevant Supply Chain legislation and Broad-based Black 
Economic Empowerment. To this end, Bloem Water has ensured that its BEE certification 
is verified every year. A concerted effort is made to ensure that in its operations, Bloem 
Water applies BEE initiatives as contemplated by the Department of Trade and Industry 
(DTI) Codes of Good Practice. BEE spend is reported to the Department of Water Affairs 
on a quarterly basis and targets in this regard have been met. The 2011/12 BEE 
Certificate is currently under review. 
 
Bloem Water achieved an estimated 79.25% spent on BEE compliant suppliers in line with 
the BEE Act. 
 
With regards to Supplier Development and Empowerment, Bloem Water continues to 
capacitate emerging contractors. Capacity building initiatives such as training on 
Occupational Health & Safety, Project Management, etc. were carried out in the period 
under review. Feedback received from the trained contractors is always positive and 
appreciative. In the next cycle it is envisaged that women and youth-owned entities will 
be targeted and supported in line with the BEE Codes. 
 
Asset Management 
An intranet-based Asset Management System is currently in use, which allows for the 
management of assets in line with SA GAAP. The Bloem Water asset system is designed 
to accommodate the different asset classes which mainly consist of pipelines, buildings 
and other tangible assets. Fleet, as part of assets, is managed centrally and a Fleet 
Management System is in place.  
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Servitudes are considered as an inseparable component of our assets. A Servitude 
Register is thus kept and maintained on an ongoing basis. In the year under review, an 
audit of the Servitude Register was carried out and specific areas were identified 
wherein additional work needs to be done. 
 

Remarks 
The financial position of Bloem Water remains viable, taking into account the 
considerable amount payable in interest and capital redemption, as well as the 
involvement of Bloem Water in areas where services are rendered where operation and 
maintenance is performed with limited cost-recovery. Bloem Water is involved in 
secondary activities and strives to ensure that future involvement and the risk associated 
with these operations are mitigated. The main concern, however, is and remains the 
non-payment of customers in cost-recovery environments. 
 
The Board of Bloem Water has embarked upon a Capital Expenditure Programme and 
will determine where there are any amendments required to the existing Programme 
affecting the financial obligations of the Board. The resulted increase in depreciation 
has to be mitigated in future as Bloem Water has to build up reserves for the future 
replacement of the assets it has depreciated. 
 
National Treasury approved borrowing limits over the next 5 years. The guidelines and 
set ratios by National Treasury and the Department are affected and insufficient 
external funding can be sourced during the next few years. The needs will have to be 
adapted with the availability of financial resources. 
 
The Departments reporting to the Chief Financial Officer were able to render 
appropriate support services to other Departments throughout the financial year and 
shall continue to strive for improvement in rendering these services and support in the 
future. 
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Operations and Maintenance 
 

Drinking Water Supply Schemes 
The continuation of effective service delivery is 
dependent on an effective drinking water supply 
system, corrective and preventative measures and 
operational controls necessary to ensure a safe and 
reliable drinking water supply. In order to ensure an 
effective and reliable drinking water supply system, 
Bloem Water has divided its operations into three 
regions, namely: 
 

· Modder River Region (MRR); 
· Caledon River Region (CRR); and 
· Orange River Region (ORR). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mokutu Derrick Kgwale 
Executive: Operations & Maintenance 
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Region Source Pumping 

System 

Treatment Storage Area of 

Service 

· Orange 

River 

· Orange River  

· Boreholes 

· Driefontein 

· Volgfontein 

· Tolhuis 

· Phillipolis 

 x 1.2 Mℓ/d 

· Reservoirs x 2 · Phillipolis 

 · Gariep Dam · Gariep · Gariep 

 x 2.8 Mℓ/d 

· Reservoirs x 2 · Gariep 

 · Orange River 

· Boreholes 

· SAR 

· Kleinzuurfontein 

· Hennie Steyn 

· Brandewijnskuil 

· Bethulie 

 x 6.0 Mℓ/d 

· Reservoirs x 5 · Trompsburg 

· Springfontein 

 · Jagersfontein Mine 

· Boreholes 

· Kalkfontein 

· Lemoenkloof · Jagersfontein 

 x 2 Mℓ/d 

· Reservoirs x 1 · Jagersfontein 

· Fauresmith 

· Caledon 

River 

· Welbedacht Dam 

· Caledon River 

· Knellpoort Dam 

· Boreholes 

· Tienfontein 

· Novo 

· Reddersburg 

· Edenburg 

· Dewetsdorp 

· Raw and Clear 

water 

· Welbedacht 

 x 145 Mℓ/d 

· Reservoirs x 7 · Bloemfontein 

· Dewetsdorp 

· Wepener 

· Reddersburg 

· Edenburg 

 

· M odder 

River 

· Groothoek Dam 

· Rustfontein Dam 

· Knellpoort Dam 

· Boreholes 

· OK 

· Groothoek 

· Lesaka 

· Raw and Clear 

Water 

· Rustfontein 

x 100 Mℓ/d 

· Groothoek 

x 18 Mℓ/d 

· Reservoirs x 6 · ThabaNchu 

· Botshabelo 

· Villages 

 

Modder and Caledon River Regions 
The Modder and Caledon River Regions’ water supply schemes are located within the 
Greater Bloemfontein supply system. The schemes provide the majority of potable water 
requirements to the larger centres of Bloemfontein, ThabaNchu and Botshabelo, as well 
as the smaller towns of Wepener, Dewetsdorp, Reddersburg, Edenburg, and Excelsior. 
Rural villages, approximately 36, in the vicinity of this scheme are supplied through 
boreholes. The boreholes are maintained and operated by Bloem Water. 
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The Modder River Region scheme is Bloem Water’s medium sized scheme and 
comprises of two Water Treatment Works, namely: Rustfontein – 100 Mℓ/day and 
Groothoek – 18 Mℓ/day. The Rustfontein Water Treatment Works is situated at the 
Rustfontein Dam, 12 km west of Botshabelo and 25 km south of Bloemfontein. The 
Rustfontein Dam receives bulk of its water from the Knellpoort/Novo transfer scheme, 
and also acts as a buffer for the Mockes Dam. Water is released from the Rustfontein 
Dam into the Mockes Dam where it is released to the Maselspoort Water Treatment 
Works. Maselspoort is owned and operated by Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality. 
This Plant has a design capacity of 110 Mℓ/day and supplies water to the northern parts 
of Bloemfontein. The Rustfontein Water Treatment Works’ average daily production rates 
are as outlined below: 
 
Botshabelo ThabaNchu Town 

(including 36 villages) 

Excelsior Bloemfontein 

55 Mℓ/day 17 Mℓ/day 4 Mℓ/day 27 Mℓ/day 

 

 
 

Greater Bloemfontein Water Supply System 
  

Modder River 
– Region

Caledon 
River Region
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The Groothoek Water Treatment Works is situated 17 km from Thaba Nchu near the 
Maria Moroka Game Reserve. Besides supplying water to the villages south of Thaba 
Nchu, the system acts as an augmentation scheme for the Rustfontein water supply 
system. The Groothoek average daily production rates are 12 Mℓ/day. 
 
The Caledon River Region scheme is Bloem Water’s largest scheme and comprises of 
the Welbedacht Water Treatment Works – 145 Mℓ/day. The scheme supplies the bulk of 
its water to Bloemfontein with take-off to Wepener, Dewetsdorp, Edenburg, 
Reddersburg and surrounding farmers. The Water Treatment Plant is situated 110 km 
south of Bloemfontein. The Welbedacht Water Treatment Works’ average daily 
production rates are as outlined below: 
 
Wepener Dewetsdorp Reddersburg - Edenburg Bloemfontein 

3,75 Mℓ/day 4 Mℓ/day 3 Mℓ/day 113 Mℓ/day 

 
Orange River Region 
The Orange River Region scheme is Bloem Water’s small sized scheme and comprises of 
4 Water Treatment Works, namely: Bethulie – 6 Mℓ/Day (currently being increased to 
12 Mℓ/day), Gariep – 2.8 Mℓ/day, Phillipollis – 1.2 Mℓ/day and Jagersfontein – 2 Mℓ/day. 
Bloem Water owns the Bethulie Water Treatment Works, and performs Operations and 
Maintenance at the other mentioned Water Treatments Works on behalf of Kopanong 
Local Municipality. The Bethulie Water Treatment Works is situated in Bethulie and 
supplies water to the towns of Bethulie, Springfontein and Trompsburg. The Gariep Water 
Treatment Works is situated at the Gariep Dam and supplies water to the town of 
Gariep. The Phillippolis Water Treatment Works is situated 50 km from the Orange River 
(Tolhuis), in the town of Phillippolis, and supplies water to this town.  
 
Water Security/Availability 
The Bloem Water water supply schemes receive bulk of their raw water from the Orange 
River. The Orange River is an international resource, shared by four countries i.e. Lesotho, 
South Africa, Botswana and Namibia. Any strategy or decision taken by any one of the 
countries that will impact on the water availability or quality in South Africa must be 
taken into account. The opposite is also applicable. The Orange River, the largest river in 
South Africa, has its origin in the high-lying areas of Lesotho. The river drains a total 
catchment area of about 1 million km², runs generally in a westerly direction and finally 
discharges into the Atlantic Ocean at Alexander Bay. The Caledon River, forming the 
north-western boundary of Lesotho with the Republic of South Africa (RSA), is the first 
major tributary of the Orange River.  
 
The Caledon and the Orange (called the Senqu River in Lesotho) Rivers have their 
confluence in the upper reaches of the Gariep Dam. 
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Synopsis of Orange River Bulk Water Supply System Reconciliation Study 

The Orange River Bulk Water Supply System Reconciliation Study has been initiated by 
the Department of Water Affairs and is currently underway. The objective of the study is 
to develop a reconciliation strategy for the bulk water resources of the Orange River 
System to ensure sufficient water can be made available to supply the current and 
future water needs of all the users up to the year 2040. The entire Orange River Basin is 
shown in the figure below including the portions in Botswana, Lesotho and Namibia and 
including the Vaal River catchment. The study area comprises only the South African 
portion of the Orange River Basin, excluding the Vaal River Catchment. 
 
As part of this study the current and projected future water demands will be compared 
with the current and projected water availability in the system to determine whether a 
water balance will be achieved. In a situation where water deficits exist or are foreseen 
in the future, water reconciliation interventions will be introduced. There are two types of 
reconciliation interventions, namely: 
 

· Interventions that will reduce the water requirements 
· Interventions that will increase the water availability. 

 

The latter intervention type can be either management measures (e.g. changing system 
operating rules) or development interventions (e.g. new dams, new transfer schemes, 
etc.). During the course of the study the water balance will be reviewed through water 
yield modeling exercises. The probability that reconciliation interventions will be needed 
for the Orange River in future is high because of the following reasons: 
 

· Increasing water demands in all water use sectors. 
· Phase 2 of the Lesotho Highlands Water Project (LHWP) has already been 

announced and it is known that the new Polihali Dam and the transfer of this 
dam’s water to the Vaal System will reduce the water availability lower down in 
the Orange River.  

· A yield replacement intervention must therefore be implemented before the full 
LHWP Phase 2 yield is diverted to maintain assurance of supply to existing users. 

· The ecological water requirements of the Orange River and its tributaries as well 
as the ecological water requirements for the Orange River Estuary are being 
determined and it must be ensured that after these requirements are met, 
enough water will still be available for all the existing and future water users. 

· The impact of climate change could be such that water availability is affected 
and measures to counteract this impact must be identified. 
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Synopsis of Greater Bloemfontein Supply System Reconciliation Study 

During the period from 2009 to 2012, the Department of Water Affairs, in close 
collaboration with Bloem Water and Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality (MMM) and 
all other major stakeholders, developed the Bloem Reconciliation Strategy which is 
aimed at developing a sustainable balance between future water availability and 
water requirements in the area serviced by the Greater Bloemfontein Water Supply 
System. The Bloem Reconciliation Strategy is a framework for informed decision-making 
and addresses on-going management, as well as the factors to be considered in the 
selection of the available future augmentation interventions up to 2035. The following 
assumptions were made for the development of the future water requirement scenarios 
from the Greater Bloemfontein water supply: 
 

· High Growth Water Requirement Scenario based on the authorised billed and 
unbilled water consumption figures for the last 3 years and a growth rate of 3% 
per annum. 

 
· Low Growth Water Requirement Scenario based on a low population growth 

and low economic growth, with an effective growth in water requirements of 
1% per annum. 

  

Orange River Basin study area 
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The figure below illustrates the comparison of available surface water supply and 
current water requirements for the high and low water requirement scenarios in the 
Greater Bloemfontein area. The current water requirement (based on 2009 data) is 
approximately 83 million m³/a, which is in balance with the available supply of 
84 million m³/a (Historical Firm Yield): 
 

 

Greater Bloemfontein supply and requirements 
 
The figure above indicates that the 2009 water requirement was in balance with 
available supply (historical firm yield) and any increase in use (as predicted by the high 
and low water requirement scenarios) would put the system at risk. The higher the 
growth in water requirements, the higher the risk would be. It is clear that measures to 
increase the surety of supply need to be implemented as soon as possible. The short to 
long term interventions from the study are discussed the sections below. 
 
Drinking Water Supply Schemes Assessment 
The risk that the drinking water supply system could fail should be at an acceptable 
level of mitigation. As changing demand alter supply patterns, the risk of failure will also 
change. The risk of system failure is to be constantly monitored and evaluated to ensure 
that individual system components have the necessary measures in place to mitigate 
and/or manage the risk to acceptable levels coupled with concomitant response 
capacity. 
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Current Water Requirements 
Bloem Water abstracts the bulk of its raw water from the Caledon and Orange Rivers. 
The Caledon River, forming the north-western boundary of Lesotho with the Republic of 
South Africa (RSA), is the first major tributary of the Orange River. The Welbedacht Dam 
is located along the Caledon River and supplies water to the Welbedacht Water 
Treatment Works. Siltation has significantly impacted on the yield of the dam requiring 
the construction of the Knellpoort off-channel storage dam supplied with transferred 
water from the Caledon River via the Tienfontein Pump Station, enabling year-round 
abstraction from Welbedacht. The Novo Transfer Pump Station at Knellpoort Dam 
enables the transfer of water into the Modder River, which supplies the Rustfontein and 
Mockes Dams. The Maselspoort Scheme (Weir and WTP) on the Modder River is owned 
and operated by Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality and is supposed to supply 
approximately 25% of Bloemfontein’s water needs. However, due to pumping 
challenges at the Maselspoort Water Treatment Works this target is not met. This situation 
has resulted in Bloem Water having to supply the bulk of the water (i.e. 90%). 
 
The Novo Transfer Scheme includes Tienfontein Pump Station, a pipeline and canal from 
Tienfontein Pump Station to the Knellpoort Dam, Knellpoort Dam, and the Novo Pump 
Stationand pipeline. The Knellpoort Dam acts as a buffer for both the Rustfontein and 
Welbedacht Water Treatment Works. The Novo Pump Station transfers water from 
Knellpoort Dam to the Modder River, via a 20 km pipeline and then via the Modder River 
to Rustfontein Dam. The Groothoek Dam located in the south of ThabaNchu supplies 
water into the Groothoek Water Treatment Works. 
 
The historical water abstractions are indicated in the table below: 
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The increase in abstraction rates at the Welbedacht Dam are due to the increased 
water demand at the Greater Bloemfontein area. 

 

 
 
The increase in abstraction rates at the Rustfontein and the Groothoek Dams are due to 
the increased water demand at Botshabelo and ThabaNchu area. 
 
The Bethulie and Philippolis WTW receive their water from the Orange River. Water is 
abstracted at Hennie Steyn and Tollhuis Pump Stations for supply to Bethulie and 
Philippolis WTW, respectively. The Gariep WTW receives its water from the Gariep Dam. 
The historical water abstractions are indicated in the table below: 
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Abstraction rates at the Orange River Region have remained constant; however, the 
Bethulie abstraction rates are expected to increase once the construction of the 
additional 6 Mℓ Water Treatment Works is completed. 
 
The increase in abstraction rates have resulted in the approved allowable limits being 
exceeded. Bloem Water has since made applications to the Department of Water 
Affairs to revise the approved allowable limits. The applications were approved and the 
revised allowable limits are indicated in the table below: 
 

 

Treatment Works Current 

Plant 

Design 

Max. Raw 

Water 

Abstraction 

p.a. 

Max. Raw 

Water 

Abstraction 

p.a. 

Existing 

Water Use 

Licence 

Approvals 

Revised 

Volumes 

Required 

Mℓ/day x106m3 x106m3 x106m3 x106m3 

Welbedacht WTW 160 58.4 50.263 48.3 52.5 

Tienfontein 242 88.3 29.096 72 72 

Novo 144.3 52.67 40.93 48 48 

Rustfontein WTW 100 36.5 27.723 28.5 31 

Groothoek WTW 18 6.57 3.875 0.744 5 

Gariep WTW 2.8 1.02 0.71 0.507 0.8 

Bethulie WTW 12 4.38 1.776 1.5 2 

Phillipolis WTW 1.2 0.438 0.229 0.383 0.35 

 
 
Authorised water consumption has been growing at an average rate of 3% per annum 
over the period 2007 through to 2010 and on average by 1.7% over the period 2005 
through to 2010 in the Greater Bloemfontein Area. This increase is attributed to 
increased demand as well as increased unaccounted-for-water. The consumptions over 
the period July 2011 to June 2013 and the estimated consumption for the period July 
2013 to June 2014 for the various towns are depicted in the figures below: 
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The above indicates that the consumption per area over the period 2011/12 to 2012/13 
increased or decreased as outlined below:  
 

TOWN DESCRIPTION PERCENTAGE 

Edenburg 5% 

Reddersburg -10% 

Wepener -8% 

Dewetsdorp -19% 

Excelsior 10% 

Bethulie -13% 

Fauriesmith -41% 

Gariep -4% 

Jagersfontein 10% 

Phillipolis -15% 

Springfontein 10% 

Trompsburg 20% 

SMALL TOWNS -1% 
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The major increase or decreases per area are attributed to the following: 
 

· Reddersburg – Reduced borehole yield 

· Wepener – Reduced borehole yield 

· Dewetsdorp – Reduced borehole yield 

· Excelsior – Bucket eradication resulting 

· Bethulie – Reduced borehole yield 

· Fauriesmith – Reduced borehole yield 

· Jagersfontein – New plant operational. No longer reliance on mine shaft 

· Phillipolis – Reduced borehole yield.  

· Springfontein – Additional pipeline resulting in increase in supply 

· Trompsburg – Additional pipeline resulting in increase in supply 

 

 
The above indicates that the consumption per area over the period 2011/12 to 2012/13 
increased as outlined below: 
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AREA DESCRIPTION PERCENTAGE 

Bloemfontein (Excl. Maselspoort) 6% 

Botshabelo 9% 

ThabaNchu (Groothoek) 18% 

GREATER BLOEMFONTEIN 8% 

 
The increases per area are attributed to the following: 
 

· Bloemfontein – Challenges at Maselspoort 
· Botshabelo – Increased water losses. Constant reservoir overflow 
· ThabaNchu – Eradication of bucket system by converting to water-borne sewage 

 
The reservoir levels over the period under review are illustrated in the figure below: 
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Infrastructure related Challenges 
 
Caledon and Modder River Regions 
Since its construction in 1973, Welbedacht Dam has lost approximately 95% of its storage 
capacity. Over the first 18 years of operation the sediment deposition rate was 
extremely high, but since 1991 scouring of the dam during some of the floods has been 
intermittently practiced. This has reduced the rate of sedimentation but has not stopped 
the dam from gradually losing almost all of its storage capacity. The flushing operations 
and on-going sedimentation, however, impact on the quality of the water received at 
the Welbedacht Water Treatment Plant. The inability of the Water Treatment Plant to 
deal with high turbidity levels limits the production capacity of the Water Treatment 
Plant.  
 
The Department of Water Affairs has put restrictions to the amount of water which can 
be extracted from the Groothoek Dam and treated at the Water Treatment Works due 
to catchment size. Increased water abstraction will result in the dam drying out. 
Currently abstractions are above 4 million m3 per annum. The Water Treatment Plant 
has a design capacity of 18 Mℓ/day, however, only the Water Treatment Works is limited 
to treat 4 Mℓ/day. 
 
The Maselspoort Scheme (Weir and WTP) on the Modder River is owned and operated 
by Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality and is supposed to supply approximately 25% 
of Bloemfontein’s water needs. However, due to pumping challenges at the 
Maselspoort Water Treatment Works,this target is not met. This situation has resulted in 
Bloem Water having to supply the bulk of the water (i.e. 90%). 
 
The current capacity of Bloem Water’s potable water reservoirs serving the 
Mangaung/Bloemfontein area equates to about a single day’s storage (average 
annual daily demand). This is considered acceptable for the present, and is within the 
desired 1-day limit for Bloem Water. The Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality, however, 
should have a 2-day storage capacity but only has 1.5 days at present and 
augmentation of about 86 Mℓ is urgently required to remedy the current storage 
shortfall, and to provide for future growth. Similarly, the Bloem Water reservoirs supplying 
Botshabelo/ThabaNchu are adequate but the Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality’s 
storage reservoirs provide less than 50% of the required storage and augmentation is of 
critical importance.  
 
The aging Caledon/Bloemfontein pre-stressed concrete pipeline poses a huge risk to 
water supply to the Greater Bloemfontein areas. Should the condition of this pipeline 
continue to deteriorate there is a risk that more pipe bursts could occur. Any long 
outages of the pipeline will impact on the yield of the current system (and will impact on 
the continuity of supply to the user). 
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Most of the villages in the ThabaNchu area are serviced by boreholes. Most of the 
boreholes have dried out resulting in water supply challenges. 
 
Orange River Region 
The Orange River Region supplies water mainly to small towns. These towns are supplied 
via bulk and borehole water. Most of the boreholes have dried out resulting in shortage 
of water supply.  
 
Water Supply System Interventions 
Prevention is an essential feature of effective drinking water supply system 
management. When a situation that could give rise to a significant hazard has been 
identified, preventative strategies can be identified to prevent or mitigate the hazard, 
thereby minimising the risk. 
 

Caledon and Modder River Regions 
During the period from 2009 to 2012, the Department of Water Affairs, in close 
collaboration with Bloem Water and Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality (MMM) and 
all other major stakeholders, developed the Bloem Reconciliation Strategy which is 
aimed at developing a sustainable balance between future water availability and 
water requirements in the area serviced by the Greater Bloemfontein Water Supply 
System. Interventions as illustrated in the figure below have been proposed and 
implementation is underway if there are resources: 
 

 
 

 
  

Greater Bloemfontein short to long-term intervention 
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Currently, non-revenue water (NRW) in the Greater Bloemfontein area is at 50.3%. 
Implementation of Water Conservation/Water Demand Management (WC/WDM) is 
critical. Funds and resources have been allocated by Mangaung Metropolitan 
Municipality to ensure that water losses are reduced. Phase 1 of this intervention is 
underway at Bloemfontein areas with Phase 2 to cover Botshabelo and ThabaNchu 
areas. These include the following projects: 
 

Project Progress 
Phase 1 of the leak detection, pipeline replacement and 

installation of PRVs has been completed 

Implementation of Phase 2 is 

underway 

Replacement of meters older than 12 years, repair leaks, 

metering sites and metering of unmetered sites. 

Phase 2 of this project is currently 

underway 

 

Installation of Water Demand Management devices, bulk 

meters and to replace old pipes 

Project is underway 

Re-commissioning and installation of new pressure 

reducing valves (PRV) and PRV zones 

Project is in the third financial year 

of implementation 

WC/WDM Awareness Campaigns Projects are underway 

 

Bloem Water is currently in the process of sealing their leaking reservoirs (i.e. Motlatla 
and Brandkop). 
 
Increase capacity of Novo Transfer Scheme/Tienfontein Pump Station 
Tienfontein Pump Station is seen as one of the critical components of the existing water 
supply infrastructure supplying Bloem Water with raw water, as it forms part of the Novo 
inter-transfer scheme. Tienfontein Pump Station currently has a design capacity of 
3 m³/s, but due to the sedimentation-related problems and high maintenance 
requirements delivers on average approximately 2.5 m³/s. Given that the projected 
water requirements are currently in excess of the system historical firm yield, two 
additional (1 m³/s) pump-sets at Tienfontein Pump Station are being implemented. The 
first pump-set will be utilised to increase the design capacity of the Pump Station to 
4 m³/s and the second pump-set to provide additional standby capacity. This would 
provide an additional yield of approximately 4.4 million m³/a. The progress on this 
intervention is as follows: 
 
The fourth pump has been refurbished and has been installed. A second pump has 
been removed and refurbishment is in progress. 
 
Procurement process for the purchase of two additional pumps is underway. The 
expected delivery date is two years after receipt of the order. 
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Service Provider has been appointed for the manufacturing and installation of 
additional pump-set (1 x 1.5 m3) at Novo Pump Station. 
 
Address the siltation problems at Welbedacht WTP 
The management of dams in South Africa falls within the Department of Water Affairs’ 
(DWA) jurisdiction. DWA has investigated medium-to-long and short-term options to 
reduce the silt content in Welbedacht as well as supplying better quality water to the 
treatment works (managed and operated by Bloem Water) under their Dam Safety 
Rehabilitation Programme: 
 

Short-Term (September 2012 to March 2014) 
Currently the river bed level is above the Full Supply Level (FSL) at Welbedacht 
Dam and only through prolonged scouring will the capacity be restored to 
between 10 and 20 x106 m3. The short-term project will involve: 
 
· unblocking raw water intake no 1 (which has been blocked for many years) 

so that it can be used for scouring purposes as well as supplying water to the 
treatment plant should the need arise – Complete 

· The no 2 sleeve valve has been removed and will be refurbished before the 
end of the financial year 

· Three knife gate valves are being procured to replace the butterfly valves on 
the river outlets 

 
Medium to Long-Term (2012 to 2017) 
· Concept layout of the civil work for desilting works has been done. A 

professional service provider (PSP) to be appointed to undertake the detailed 
design (this will enable the scouring of the dam during flood conditions and still 
allow the abstraction of water for the purification works) 

· Bi-directional pipeline between Knellpoort and WTW. The appointment of the 
PSP to undertake the feasibility studies has been initiated by Bloem Water. 
Funding to implement the project on completion of the feasibility study has 
been requested from DWA. 

 
Bloemfontein/Welbedacht Pre-Stressed Concrete Pipeline Condition 
The Welbedacht/Bloemfontein pre-stressed concrete pipeline was constructed in the early 
1970’s (commissioned in 1974) and consists of a 112 km long DN1200 pipeline. Together with 
Tienfontein Pump Station, the Welbedacht pipeline is also regarded as a critical component 
of the raw water/bulk water supply infrastructure. The pipeline is a pre-stressed concrete 
pipeline which is subject to numerous bursts due to the deterioration of the pre-stressed 
windings which impacts on the structural integrity of the pipeline. This is the main supply line 
from Welbedacht to Mangaung and any unplanned failure poses the risk of water supply 
interruptions and unavailability of water to the consumers. The following interventions are 
currently underway: 
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· Bloem Water has commenced with the process for the implementation of a 
parallel pipeline project next to the pre-stressed concrete pipeline. Designs 
are 80% complete. Phase 1 of this project will cover the section Brandkop 
Reservoir to Leeukop takeoff (35km). Construction is expected to commence 
in 2014.  

· A service provider has been appointed by Bloem Water to undertake the leak 
detection assessment of the pre-stressed concrete pipeline (PCP). Interim 
results indicated that there are 30 leaks along the entire pipe length (103 km). 
Results analysis is still underway, and final report is expected during the month 
of October 2013.  

· Additional funding has been requested from DWA to fund the structural 
integrity assessment of the pre-stressed concrete pipeline as well as the 
remaining section (70 km) of the parallel pipeline.  

· Lining of the 6.5 km De Hoek rising main steel pipeline is nearing completion. 
· During 2012, a hydraulic assessment on the PCP was undertaken and the 

following recommended corrective actions were implemented: 
 

· Refurbish/replace old air-valves 
· Install additional air-valves 
· Correct operation of inlet valves at Brandkop 
· Correct procedures for filling and emptying the main line 
· Increase of the air intake towers  
· Replacement of the Groves and installation of surge anticipating 

 
Maselspoort Water Treatment Works 
The Maselspoort Water Treatment Works was constructed very early in the 1900s and, 
although refurbishment work has periodically been undertaken, huge operational 
challenges are now being experienced and bottlenecks have been identified which 
are limiting the available treatment capacity to meet the current Bloemfontein 
demands. Most of the raw water abstraction and high-lift pumps currently in use were 
commissioned between 1955 and 1966, with two abstraction pumps replaced in 1998 
and a high-lift pump added in 1983. Noting that the expected lifespan of a pump 
casing is in the order of 20 years, rotating assembly (impeller and bearings) only 5 years 
and motor as long as 40 years, these pumps and even motors have generally reached 
the end of their lifespan, resulting in frequent pump and motor failures and associated 
high maintenance and operational costs. Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality is 
currently implementing the following projects: 
 

· upgrade pipeline to Naval Hill, and  
· refurbish pumps and processes.  
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Storage capacity 
The following projects to increase the storage capacity in Mangaung area are 
underway: 
 

· new Longridge Reservoir (45 Mℓ) 
· new Naval Hill Reservoir (35 Mℓ) 
· additional storage facilities in Botshabelo and ThabaNchu 
· new OK Terminal Storage 
· Additional storage at Houtnek and Motlatla. 

 
Orange River Region and Small Towns 
The following interventions are currently being implemented by Bloem Water and the 
Department of Water Affairs:  
 

· Van Standensrus – New pumps have been installed to exiting boreholes. 
Additional boreholes are currently being drilled. 

· Bethulie - Increase the capacity of the Bethulie WTP from 6 Mℓl/day to 12 Mℓ/day; 
Project is 90% complete. 

· Trompsburg/Springfontein - Construction of a new 2 Mℓ reservoir at Springfontein is 
underway. 

· Jagersfontein/Fauriesmith - Phase 2 of the Jagersfontein WTW is underway. 
· Dewetsdorp – Appointment of a Professional Service Provider to undertake the 

feasibility study for the additional pipeline. 
· Wepener - Appointment of a Professional Service Provider to undertake the 

feasibility study for the booster Pump Station. 
· Edenburg/Reddersburg – Process to appoint a Professional Service Provider for 

the design and implementation of an additional pipeline from Uitkyk reservoir to 
Edenburg and Reddersburg to be initiated. 

· Excelsior – Process to appoint a Professional Service Provider for the design and 
implementation of a booster Pump Station near Houtnek reservoir to be initiated. 
Procurement process for the appointment of a Contractor for the upgrade of the 
pipeline near Morago village (10 km) is underway. 
 

Customers 
In its effort to ensure continuous customer satisfaction, Bloem Water has embarked on a 
customer survey in line with their Customer Service Charter. Customers surveyed 
included Mantsopa, Kopanong and Naledi Local Municipalities, Mangaung 
Metropolitan Municipality and the Regional Department of Water Affairs. 
 
The average Bloem Water score was 3 – Meet Expectations/Good. Comments made by 
the various customers are being attended to. 
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Clause 32 of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) states that; every Water Board – 
must enter into written Contracts when performing its primary and other activities. To 
date, Bloem Water has signed Service Level Agreements (SLA) with Mantsopa and 
Kopanong Local Municipalities. Following the customer survey, Naledi Local Municipality 
has requested a workshop on the draft Service Level Agreement submitted to them for 
signature. The SLA between Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality and Bloem Water is 
also not yet signed. The MMM City Manager and the Bloem Water Chief Executive have 
committed to sure finality on this matter. The issue of the current Tariff structure (i.e. 
Systems Tariff) will also be attended to by both parties. 
 
Drinking Water Quality Management and Monitoring 
Access to safe drinking water is a basic human right and essential to people’s health. 
Safe drinking water that complies with the South African National Standards (SANS 
241:2011) Drinking Water Specifications does not pose a significant risk to health over a 
lifetime of consumption, including different sensitivities that may occur between life 
stages. Improving access to safe drinking water can thus result in tangible benefits to 
public health and every effort should be made to achieve a drinking water quality that 
complies with national standards. 
 
The water quality for Bloem Water met the SANS 241:2011 requirements and no water 
failures were experienced, as indicated in the Drinking Water Quality Chart below. 
Purification Plants from which water is distributed for human consumption are situated in 
three main areas, namely Bethulie on the Orange River, Rustfontein on the Modder River 
and Welbedacht on the Caledon River.  
 
Water Quality Monitoring Programmes are pursued internally at Plant level and 
externally with the University of the Free State. Water was sampled at the source (before 
purification) as well as at the distribution points (after purification). Internally, at Plant 
level, the Monitoring Programme involves testing on a 2-hourly and 8-hourly basis. 
Externally, through the University of the Free State, bio-monitoring takes place quarterly 
and chemical monitoring and microbial monitoring takes place weekly, bi-monthly and 
monthly. The Drinking Water Quality results (i.e. Microbiology and Chemical quality) for 
the 12/13 financial year at the various schemes as uploaded on the DWA Blue Drop 
System are presented below: 
 
Modder River Region 
The chemical and microbiological quality of the water on the Rustfontein water system 
was of a high quality for the period July 2012 to June 2013. Chemical sampling was 
done for September, November and December 2012. The blank spaces in these months 
are because data was not loaded on the Blue Drop System. 
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Caledon River Region 
The chemical quality of the water on the Welbedacht water system was of a high 
quality for the period July 2012 to June 2013. There were bacteriological failures on 
22 October 2012 and 30 January 2013 at Bloemspruit and Longridge, respectively. 
However, the microbial growth was insignificant. 
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Orange River Region 
The chemical and microbiological quality of the water on the Bethulie water system was 
of a high quality for the period July 2012 to June 2013. There was a microbiological 
failure on 13 May 2013 and the situation was resolved. 
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DEFINITIONS 
Data Definitions 
 
Monitoring Compliance* 
 
Compliance against your registered sampling programmes (i.e. E.coli every 14 days) 
 
Microbiological Compliance* 
 
Microbial water quality is the state of the water with respect to the absence (good water quality) or presence 
(poor water quality) of micro-organisms. Microbial water quality is usually indicated by reporting the count 
(number) of indicator organisms present in a given volume of water. SANS 241 requires a 97% compliance. 
 
Chemical Compliance* 
 
Chemical water quality refers to the nature and concentration of dissolved substances such as salts, metals and 
organic chemicals. All determinants with a possible threat to health are listed. SANS 241 requires a min 85% 
compliance. 
 
Physical & Organoleptic (Non Health)* 
 
Physical:  Water Quality properties determined by intrinsic characteristics which include conductivity, pH and 
turbidity. Organoleptic: Determinants that affects the smell, taste and appearance of water. In this category all 
determinants listed have no threat to human health. SANS 241 requires a min 85% compliance. 
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COLOUR LEGEND 
 

Description 
    

Microbiological 
(Health) 

Chemical 
(Health) Physical Organoleptic Operational 

Excellent  99% 95% 95% 85% 

Good 97% 85% 85% 80% 

Need Attention 95% 80% 80% 70% 

Intervention 
Required <95% <80% <80% <70% 

     

 
Chemical Usage 
Chemical usage/dosage is key in ensuring that the final water quality meets the set 
standard. The chemical costs by the various Plants during the 2012/13 financial year are 
illustrated below: 
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Water Loss 
Water losses were managed in all treatment works’ in an effort to be within the set 
target of 15%. All losses are determined via the water model that is being utilised by 
Bloem Water in order to manage and calculate water losses on a monthly basis. From a 
system input of 105 320 585 million m³ for 2012/2013 financial year (as illustrated below), 
water losses amounted to 9.04% of which 2.01% were apparent losses and 7.03% real 
losses. A decrease of 2.59% in water losses have been achieved in comparison to the 
previous year. 
 
 
Water Loss Table for Bloem Water for the period: 2012/07/01 to 2013/06/30 

System Input Authorised Consumption Billed Revenue Water 

 
 
 
 
 
 

105,320,985 

 
 

95,804,832 
(90.96%) 

94,607,578 
(89.83%) 

94,607,578 
(89.83%) 

Unbilled Non Revenue Water 
1,197,254 

(1.14%) 
10,713,407 

(10.17%) 
Water Losses Apparent Losses 

 
 

9,516,153 
(9.04%) 

2,117,273 
(2.01%) 

Real Losses 
7,398,879 

(7.03%) 
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This achievement is attributed to the interventions as outlined in the maintenance 
section below. Despite these achievements, more work is still needed to reduce these 
losses. Of concern is the amount of losses at the Motlatla and Brandkop reservoirs as well 
as the Welbedacht/Bloemfontein pre-stressed concrete pipeline. Projects are underway 
to manage these losses. 
 
The Brandkop reservoir has a design capacity of 136 000 m3, and is registered as a dam, 
in terms of Dam Safety Legislation of Chapter 12 of the National Water Act (Act No 36 of 
1998). The reservoir has been in use since 1973 and there is deterioration which requires 
repair and maintenance. The third dam safety inspection for the reservoir was 
undertaken in October 2012, in terms of the Act. The estimated water losses per day is 
3 697 m3. 
 
Motlatla Reservoir is a 5.6 Mℓ/day concrete. The reservoir is located in Thaba Nchu and 
acts as a buffer for the Tibali (via the Rustfontein WTW) and Blydskap (via the Groothoek) 
reservoirs. The reservoir is leaking at the base and the estimated water losses per day is 
approximately 17 280 litres. 
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Maintenance 
Risk management is a key component of effective asset and maintenance 
management and can be described as achieving the optimal balance between cost, 
risk and performance. Aging water infrastructure is one of the most important issues 
currently facing Bloem Water, along with managing capital costs, energy costs and 
obtaining capital funding. The potential for system deterioration due to age is further 
compounded by expectations for growth that would further stress existing facilities. To 
deal with these issues Bloem Water has adopted a risk-based management approach 
and has implemented an Assets and Maintenance Management 
Programme/framework.  
 
Approximately R10 793 731.00 was allocated for maintenance for all three regions. This 
budget excludes refurbishment and expansion projects. The 2012/13 budget was 
expensed as outlined in the table below: 
 

Description Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance % Spent 

Sub:Michael - Maintenance Caledon 4 514 800.00 3 770 557.73 744 242.27 83.52 

Sub:Michael - Maintenance Modder 3 027 031.00 1 814 200.56 1 212 830.44 59.93 

Sub:Michael - Maintenance Orange 2 453 000.00 1 257 992.84 1 195 007.16 51.28 

Sub:Michael - Maintenance Telemetry 798 900.00 638 707.11 160 192.89 79.95 

TOTAL 10 793 731.00 7 481 458.24 3 312 272.76 69 

 
The figures above only include maintenance activities related to pumps, pipelines, 
reservoirs, dams, vehicle, machinery at regional level.  
 
Preventative Maintenance 
In seeking to improve asset and maintenance management within Bloem Water, 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s) for the various assets has been developed. 
SOP’s are aimed at ensuring that asset and maintenance management is embedded 
into the day-to-day business and operational tasks. The annual revision of the 
Preventative Maintenance Checklists were completed and implemented. Artisans 
execute their weekly, monthly, quarterly and annual inspections in line with the 
approved checklists which are checked by the Maintenance Technicians as well as 
sporadic checks performed by the Regional Managers and the Maintenance Manager. 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) were developed, approved and loaded on the 
Bloem Water intranet. 
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Winter Maintenance 
Winter maintenance commenced during early May in all three regions and progress as 
of August 2013 was as follows:  
 

· Modder River Region – 81% 
· Caledon River Region– 79% 
· Orange River Region – 89% 

 
In general the winter maintenance is progressing well and the following activities were 
identified for implementation: 
 
Replacement of faulty air, isolating and line control valves 
Cleaning and inspection of all reservoirs 
 
Repairs on pipeline leakages where planned shutdowns are required 
Cleaning and inspection of all Plant processes, i.e. primary and secondary 
sedimentation tanks, filters and related infrastructure 
Pump and motor replacements and refurbishments 
 
Pump Replacements and Refurbishments 
The condition and performance of all pumps and motors were assessed to prioritize 
which pumps and motors require replacement or refurbishment and sufficient funds 
budgeted accordingly on both the CAPEX and OPEX budgets to ensure successful 
implementation in line with the “Pump Refurbishment and Replacement Plan”. 
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New pumps and motors were purchased in all three regions which were old and not 
operating cost-effectively any longer and to ensure that standby pumping capacity is 
available at all times. Pump condition monitoring system is being installed in all the 
regions. 
 
Meter Replacements 
A five-year Meter Replacement Plan was compiled where the replacement of billing 
meters were prioritized to ensure accurate billing. New strainers were installed at the 
new bulk meter installations. In total 47 meters were replaced of which some were 
control meters to calculate trajectory losses on a monthly basis. Three new electronic 
meters were installed at Maselspoort as check meters to confirm the volume of raw 
water abstracted on a monthly basis. Meter calibration and verification were also 
undertaken. 
 
Boreholes 
All borehole pumps were tested and pump and motor data verified, as well as the flow 
rates, suction height and displacement head and recorded. Yield tests were also 
performed on some of the boreholes in Thaba Nchu to determine the current 
sustainable yield of the boreholes. Cables were installed to measure the depth of the 
groundwater level and old mono pumps were replaced with submersible pumps for 
ease of maintenance.  
 
All borehole installations where there were no pump houses available were properly 
fenced with Devils Fork fencing to avoid vandalism. Specifications were agreed upon to 
standardize all borehole installations in terms of monitoring and maintenance by 
installing timers, volt meters and hour meters. A solar borehole installation, sponsored by 
Grunfos, was done at Sediba and is operating very well. The live online monitoring (i.e. 
remote monitoring) of the boreholes is still in progress and meetings are held with 
Grunfos in this regard. 
 
Pipeline Inspections 
Pipeline inspections were conducted on all trajectories to detect possible leaks and 
equipment failures. Items identified and reported on included valve and flange data, 
number and size of bolts on valves and flanges, condition of manholes and valves, GPS 
coordinates, elevation and chainage. The correct spanner sizes to be used on the bolts 
and nuts were also recorded to ensure the correct tools are loaded on site to do repairs. 
All this information is captured on the GIS on our Intranet system and assists the Artisans 
and Maintenance Technicians with their planning.  
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Geospatial Information System 
A GIS was developed on our Intranet system on which all the pipeline inspection reports 
are loaded. The manholes and all equipment within are pinpointed by means of the 
GPS coordinates. All pipeline trajectories can be seen clearly on the GIS with the aid of 
Google Maps. Accurate history will eventually be captured regarding pipeline failures, 
valve replacements as well as the condition of all equipment within the specific 
manholes. This further assists with our asset management. 
 
Pipeline Failures 
Pipeline failures are recorded by the regions and reported as and when it occurs. The 
total cost involved in the repairs is calculated inclusive of the water lost. All regions 
experienced pipeline failures which were due to the following, i.e. damaging of the 
pipes by others, ageing asbestos cement lines and pressure bursts experienced. All 
failures were repaired within the prescribed time allowed (within 36 hours) and no 
consumers were without water during the repair period. The total failures per region can 
be summarised as follows: 
 

Modder River 
Twelve (12) failures experienced for the financial year of which 4 occurred on the 
Morago pipeline. This pipeline is an asbestos cement line and most bursts were 
due to ground movement and a CAPEX project is underway to install a new PVC 
line to mitigate the risk of future failures. 
 
Caledon River 
Nineteen (19) failures experienced for the financial year of which 16 occurred on 
the Uitkyk/Reddersburg/Edenburg pipeline. This pipeline is an asbestos cement 
line and most bursts were due to ground movement as well as excessive pressure 
induced. New air valves have been identified for installation as well as the 
replacement of the burst control and pressure relief valves. Funding needs to be 
secured to replace the asbestos cement line with a PVC line. 
 
Orange River 
Twenty three (23) failures experienced for the financial year of which 4 occurred 
on the Lemoenkloof/Jagersfontein pipeline. This pipeline is a GRP line and most 
bursts were due to incorrect bedding material used. The other failures that 
occurred were due to the ageing asbestos cement lines within the Kopanong 
Local Municipality. 
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Annual Plant Audits 
Annual Plant audits were conducted at the following Water Treatment Plants; 
Rustfontein, Groothoek, Welbedacht, Reddersburg, Gariep, Bethulie, Philippolis and 
Jagersfontein. Items looked at were the following – safety signage, implementation of 
both corrective and preventative maintenance, condition of infrastructure and 
functionality of pumps and Plant equipment as well as the overall Plant performance. It 
was quite notable that maintenance in all regions was well executed and the processes 
are functioning well. Items requiring attention were identified and Action Plans compiled 
for the implementation of corrective measures where required progress is monitored on 
a monthly basis. 
 
PLC, Telemetry and SCADA 
Various projects have been implemented such as PLC upgrades, installation of new 
telemetry outstations as well as SCADA development. Repeater stations have also been 
equipped with new equipment to minimize communication failures and prevent 
prolonged downtime.  
 
A new repeater site for the Winterberg repeater has been investigated and the 
equipment upgraded. This project should be completed towards the end of August 2013 
which will improve communication and automation in the Orange River region. New 
PT 100 temperature probes and proximity switches have been installed in all Pump 
Stations. Pump condition monitoring equipment has been installed at Bethulie and the 
implementation for both Rustfontein and Welbedacht is underway to monitor pump and 
motor performance efficiencies and to detect early warning signs of possible failures. 
 
Power Consumption 

Power consumption for Rustfontein, Groothoek, Welbedacht, Novo, Knellpoort and OK 
schemes for the periods 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13 financial years are illustrated 
below. The total consumption for these schemes indicates an 18% increase in power 
consumption.  
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Partnership Agreements have been entered into between ESKOM and Bloem Water for 
load-shedding during peak periods in order to limit increases in power consumption at 
the Caledon and Modder River Regions. 
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The above indicates that cost of power increased by 24% between the periods 2011/12 
and 2012/13. 

 
Research and Innovation 
In its endeavour to improve efficiency, effectiveness and make contribution to the 
water sector Body of Knowledge, Bloem Water is encouraging and promoting the 
culture of research and innovation within the Organisation, in particular the Operations 
and Maintenance Department. This will be achieved through strategic defined 
programmes, projects and interactions with water sector partners and relevant 
institutions of higher learning. The research and innovation focus areas includes the 
following:  
 
Drinking water quality and supply 
Drinking water quality and supply problems are complex and addressing them requires 
integrated approaches using knowledge and broad practical skills in water technology.  
The research and innovation area involves, but is not limited to: 
 

· Fluoridation 
· Stabilisation of chlorine concentration in main distribution system 
· Impact of algae on treatment processes 
· Taste and odour problem 
· Water quality and chemical optimization 
· Severity of bio-film growth inside distribution systems 
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Non-Revenue Water 
Non-revenue water (NRW), loss of water from leaks in pipe networks and loss of income 
is at the forefront of water utilities across the globe, as they face specific problems of 
poor infrastructure, a lack of technology and vital skills resulting in insurmountable losses. 
A key challenge for Bloem Water is to identify commercial (illegal and unregistered 
connections) and physical (pipe breaks and leaks, and reservoir overflows) losses. The 
approach of Bloem Water is to minimise the total cost of supplying water. The research 
and Innovation area involves, but is not limited to: 
 

· Review the factors that influence NRW 
· Identify the methodologies and technologies to assess the scale of NRW 
· Understand the basics of leakage growth and active control 
· Learn about innovative technologies and materials for monitoring, maintaining 

and repairing assets 
· Prioritise the actions needed to address water balance components 
· Get to know the equipment and leakage detection techniques for trunk mains 
· Backwash and de-sludging 
· Determine the percentage of leakages from night flows 
· Discover alternatives to pressure management in distribution networks 

 
Energy Savings/Efficiency 
Across the country electricity is by far the most used form of energy; the entire world 
essentially runs on electricity in one form or another. In South Africa electricity is 
generated mostly by use of coal at power stations, this Leads to carbon emissions and 
contributes to today’s global warming situation. The need to minimize carbon emissions 
while generating enough electricity is growing rapidly in South Africa and around the 
world. Business offices and workplaces use a significant amount of electricity for heating 
and cooling, lightning and operating equipment. Bloem Water is looking for new ways 
to decrease their energy demand and use. The research and Innovation area involves, 
but is not limited to: 
 

· Renewal energy (Solar) 
· Human Motion Detection Energy Saver 
· Use of LED  
· Energy-efficient solutions for lighting, heating, ventilation, and cooling 
· Hydropower opportunities 
· System optimization 
· Use of Variable Speed Drives (VSD) for pumping system 
· Load-shedding/shifting 
· Use of Day/Night switch 
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Water Treatment Plant Automation 
The degree and importance of automation at water treatment plants (WTPs) have 
increased with the development of technology and tightening of treatment 
requirements. Remote monitoring and control systems are becoming more and more 
cost-effective water management tools due to the permanent cost-reduction and 
higher accuracy of the dedicated equipment such as computers, software, controllers, 
remote terminal units, communication equipments and sensors. Water treatment 
automation became a significant research area but, most of the research teams, usually 
only use numerical simulators, not having the possibility to test and verify the several 
mathematical approaches applied into prototypes or physical models. The approach of 
Bloem Water is to develop and maintain dash-boarding capabilities. This will help us 
understand how the operations are doing in real-time; help us plan and drill down to 
core KPIs to take decisions on the fly. The information should be easily accessible either 
through the use of desktop computers and/or smartphones and/or tablets. The research 
and Innovation area involves, but is not limited to: 
 

· Chemical dosing (i.e. lime dosing automation and poly dosing automation) 
· Pulsator and filtration process units 
· Backwash and de-sludging 
· Pumping systems 
· Plant automation 

 
 

Research and Innovation Projects 
 
Energy Savings/Efficiency - HydroPower Project 
As part of a joint research initiative between Bloem Water, WRC and the University of 
Pretoria, a project to install a conduit hydropower unit at the Brandkop reservoir along 
the Welbedacht/Bloemfontein pre-stressed concrete pipeline is in progress. The section 
of the Caledon/Bloemfontein pipeline that is considered conveys water from the Uitkyk 
reservoir to the Brandkop reservoir. The hydropower facility will generate 96 Kw power to 
supply the Bloem Water Head Office.  
 
Frequently asked questions and responses regarding the projects are described below: 
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What motivated Bloem Water to come up with the idea of the mini hydropower station? 
The concept of mini hydropower in the country is spearheaded by the Water Research 
Commission in collaboration with the University of Pretoria (UP). The first pilot project 
is/was at the City of Tshwane. For the system to be effective, the water supply scheme 
must have sufficient head and a constant flow rate. The Bloem Water Welbedacht to 
Bloemfontein water supply scheme meet this criteria, whereby the head (ΔHmax) 
between the Uitkyk and Brandkop reservoirs is > 80m and the flow rate (ΔQmax) is 
approximately 1.4 m3/s. 
 
 
At what stage is the project and when is the power station expected to start operating?  
The turbine has been delivered to site, and the contractor has been appointed for the 
construction of the turbine room. The anticipated completion date for the construction 
of the room is end of November 2013, and the launch is scheduled for 4 December 
2013. 
 
 
The mini hydropower station will generate about 96 kW/h of energy, what exactly can this power do? 
(give examples of appliances and the number, if possible) 
Sufficient renewable energy will be generated to supply the peak demand of Bloem 
Water's Head Office as well as meeting the electricity requirements of the reservoir 
terrain. Annually ± 800 MWh could be generated with this micro hydropower installation. 
 
 
How much will the project cost over what period of time? 
The project is funded by Bloem Water and the Water Research Commission. The 
estimated capital project cost is R1.5 million. The cost of the turbine is approximately 
R1.1 million. The estimated project payback period is 42 months. 
 
 
Is it going to be cheaper and more efficient than using Eskom power? 
The anticipated energy cost savings is approximately R336 000 per annum. 
 
 
Which other institutions could develop this technology for their own use? 
In South Africa there are 284 Municipalities and several water supply utilities, mines, all 
owning and operating gravity water supply distribution systems which could be 
considered for small, mini, micro and pico scale hydropower installations. Most of these 
water supply/distribution systems may be equipped with turbines or pumps as turbines, 
supplementing and reducing the requirements for pressure control valves.  
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Drinking water quality and supply – Chlorine Dioxide Generators 
Chlorine Dioxide is a powerful disinfectant and oxidizing agent. It has been used for 
many years in water treatment systems for the elimination of chlorophenols, the 
oxidation of inorganic compounds such as iron and manganese, and in the control of 
taste, odour and colour. It is recognized by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
as a primary disinfectant and is effective against viruses, bacteria and protozoa, 
including the cysts of Giardia and the oocysts of Cryptosporidium.  Chlorine dioxide 
does not react with ammonia to form less-active chloramines. It will not form 
trihalomethanes (THM’s) or other chlorinated organic compounds, nor will it react with 
the many impurities that normally consume chlorine. 
 
During the 1950s, it was introduced more generally as a drinking water disinfectant since 
it provided less organoleptic hindering than chlorine. Chlorine dioxide has the chemical 
formula ClO2 and is a yellow-to-brown coloured gas at room temperature and pressure.  
It is a highly reactive oxidant and for all practical areas of water disinfection, it must be 
generated on site using proprietary reaction and dosing equipment. 
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Pathogen Inactivation and Disinfection Efficacy 
For water treatment, chlorine dioxide has several advantages over chlorine and other 
disinfectants. In contrast to chlorine, chlorine dioxide remains in its molecular form in the 
pH range typically found in natural waters (Roberts et al., 1980).  
 
One of the most important physical properties of chlorine dioxide is its high solubility in 
water, particularly in chilled water. In contrast to the hydrolysis of chlorine gas in water, 
chlorine dioxide in water does not hydrolyze to any appreciable extent but remains in 
solution as a dissolved gas (Aieta and Berg, 1986). It is approximately 10 times more 
soluble than chlorine (above 11°C), while it is extremely volatile and can be easily 
removed from dilute aqueous solutions with minimal aeration or re-carbonation with 
carbon dioxide (e.g. softening plants). 
 
pH Independence 
The main advantage of using chlorine dioxide for disinfection is the pH independence of 
the reaction. Unlike chlorine, Chlorine dioxide ClO2 will inactivate pathogenic micro-
organisms at the same rate between pH 5 and 9. This makes it ideal for disinfection of 
potable water and process water where the pH is up around 8.0. Chlorine hydrolyzes to 
hypochlorite ion significantly around pH 8.0 which renders it quite ineffective for 
disinfection.  
 
Chlorine dioxide produced by the electrochemical or acid-chlorite processes will not 
produce any THM’s upon reaction with organic matter. THM’s are regulated in most 
water supplies so this is an advantage for ClO2. 
 
Chlorine dioxide generators were installed by Bloem Water at their Bethulie and 
Rustfontein Water Treatment Plants. 
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Non-Revenue Water – Welbedacht/Bloemfontein Pre-stressed Concrete Pipeline Leak Detection 
Utilities like Bloem Water face significant challenges in managing their aging 
infrastructure, particularly buried assets (i.e. pipelines). Pipeline failures are increasing in 
frequency and severity, leaving utilities with difficult decisions on whether to maintain or 
replace these assets. The conventional approach to pipeline management allowed a 
pipeline to fail multiple times before replacing it.  
 
Proactive pipeline management identifies problematic pipe sections to allow for 
proactive repair, thereby avoiding major failures. The savings from preventing a single 
pipeline failure can restore public confidence in the utility. Considering this 
understanding, this research and innovation is aimed at implementing a comprehensive 
Pipelines Assessment and Management Programme for Bloem Water. Currently, Bloem 
Water pipeline supply system is as outlined below: The ages of these pipelines varies 
from less than 1 year to greater than 40 years. 
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A comprehensive leak detection survey on the Welbedacht/Bloemfontein pre-stressed 
concrete pipeline is currently being undertaken. The purpose of the comprehensive leak 
detection survey will be to: 
  

No Pipe Section Pipe Dia (mm) Length (km) Material Product

O1 Hennie Steyn to SAR Pre treatment 250 3.00 1/2 steel and 1/2 asbestos Raw Water
O2 SAR to Bethulie Treatment 250 17.00 Asbestos Raw Water
O3 SAR to Bethulie Treatment 350 17.00 PVC Raw Water
O4 Bethulie Treatment to Bethulie Reservior 100 0.80 Steel Potable Water
O5 Bethulie Treatment to Driefontein 200 14.00 Asbestos Potable Water
O6 Driefontein to Kleinzuurfontein (Booster pump 

stations)
200 14.00 Asbestos Potable Water

O7 Kleinzuurfontein to Springfontein Reservoir 200 14.00 Asbestos Potable Water

O8 Springfontein Reservior to Springfontein Flow 
point

150 2.00 Asbestos Potable Water

O9 Springfontein Reservoir to Trompsburg 
Reservoir

150 27.00 Asbestos Potable Water

O10 Springfontein Reservoir to Trompsburg 
Reservoir

200 27.00 PVC Potable Water

O11 Gariep Treatment to Eskom Reservior 150 0.25 Steel pipe Potable Water
O12 Gariep Tratement to PAO Reservior 150 0.50 Asbestos Potable Water
O13 Eskom Reservior to Gariep Damwall 200 3.40 Asbestos Potable Water
O14 Gariep Traeatment to Berg Reservior 200 0.90 Steel pipe Potable Water
O15 Gariep Treatment to Berg Reservior 150 0.90 Asbestos Potable Water
O16 Gariep Traeatment to TLC Reservior 200 3.40 Steel pipe Potable Water
O17 Tolhuis to Brannewynskuil 200 10.00 PVC Raw Water
O18 Brannewynskuil to Vogelfontein 200 10.00 PVC Raw Water
O19 Vogelfontein to Philippolis Palnt 200 10.00 PVC Raw Water
O20 Philippolis Plant to Top two Reservoirs 100 5.00 PVC Potable Water
O21 Jagesrfontein Plant to Top Reservior 150 4.00 2xPVC Potable Water

Total 184.15
Total larger than 300mm ND 17.00
Total larger than 250mm ND 37.00

Orange River Region

No Pipe Section Pipe Dia (mm) Length (km) Material Product

M1 Rustfontein/Leeukop 600 24.98 Steel
M2 Rustfontein/Lesaka 600 13.50 Steel
M3 Lesaka/Tabale 350 0.65 Asbestos
M4 Tabale/OK 450 9.09 Asbestos
M5 OK/Excelsior (pipe sizes vary)

M5.1 OK- Epol BTO 350 3.90 Asbestos
M5.2 Epol BTO- Zone 3 BTO 300 1.00 Asbestos
M5.3 Zone 3 BTO- Modutung BTO 250 23.53 Asbestos
M5.4 Modutung BTO- Sediba BTO 200 0.16 Asbestos
M5.5 Sediba BTO- Talla BTO 160 7.52 Asbestos
M5.6 Talla BTO- Excelsior 160 14.22 UPVC
M6 Groothoek/Blydskap 406.4 3.52 Steel
M7 Blydskap/Motlatla 450 8.75 Asbestos
M8 Motlatla/OK 350 1.70 Asbestos

Total 112.52
Total larger than 300mm ND 67.09
Total larger than 250mm ND 90.62

Modder River Region
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· Survey the pipeline and pinpoint the location of leaks (which will ensure 
prompt repair works, before total failure) 

· Confirm that previously located leaks have been repaired, and establish a 
trend based on the previous leak detection baseline 

· Locate stagnant air pockets 
· Perform internal CCTV surveys under operating conditions to assess the internal 

condition of the pipeline and confirm the presence and severity of bio-film 
growth inside the pipelines 

· Re-confirm the condition of pipeline components like valves, air valves, scour 
valves, chamber etc. 

· Assess the need for any advanced pipeline inspections at a later stage 
 
Non-Revenue Water – Filter backwash water recovery at Bethulie Water Treatment Plant 
The Bethulie Water Treatment Works is a conventional Water Treatment Plant with the 
following unit processes; coagulation, flocculation, clarification, filtration and 
chlorination of final effluent. The filter backwash water and sludge from the static 
clarifiers are discharged into two sludge lagoons. The purpose of these lagoons is to 
recover water that is washed away with the concentrated sludge. Sludge settles at the 
bottom of the lagoons and water rises to the surface, and runs over sluice gates into a 
sump. Pumps situated in the sump return then recover water back into the Treatment 
Plant.  
 
Conventional Water Treatment Plants could have up to 10% losses when final product 
water is compared with raw water input into the Plant. These losses are mainly attributed 
to sludge wasting from the clarifiers and filter backwash. The latter could be more than 
50% of the total losses of water through the Plant. The filter wash water comprises 
relatively low concentration of solids and the recovery of the liquid content is an 
economical proposition. Due to the general scarcity of water in South Africa, the 
recovery and recycling of liquid from sludge is important. 
 
Water recycled at the Bethulie WTW over the period July 2012 to June 2013 is depicted 
below. 
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Presentation at Conferences 
The following research papers were also prepared and presented: 
 

· Reduction of chemical cost and optimization of chemical usage in Caledon River 
Region, by Emma Thema and Mojalefa Mokunutlu, during the 4th Municipal 
Water Quality Conference held in Sun City from 7 to 11 July 2013. 

· Asset Management Information System - Visual representation of Geographic 
Data using Google Map by W van Aswegen, MD Kgwale, and M Tuck, during the 
4th Municipal Water Quality Conference held in Sun City from 7 to 11 July 2013. 
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Engineering and Projects 
 
The planning and implementation of new infrastructure 
projects is crucial to meet the current and future water 
demands as projected in various studies undertaken by 
Bloem Water and the Department of Water Affairs’ 
Greater Bloemfontein Reconciliation Studies “(Refer to 
Operations and Maintenance Section for details). Bloem 
Water also serves as Implementing Agent (IA) for the 
Department of Water Affairs’ (DWA) projects in the Free 
State. The programmes that are currently implemented 
include the Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant (RBIG), the 
Accelerated Community Infrastructure Programme 
(ACIP) and the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MWIG). 
The Bloem Water Capital Expenditure budget for the 
2012/13 financial year was R189 million. These projects 
are also reported to the Presidential Infrastructure 
Commission Committee (PICC) quarterly. 
 
The projects implemented for the year in review range 
from bulk water pipelines, reservoirs, buildings to 

rehabilitation of sludge lagoons.  The budget split for the Extension and Refurbishment 
projects are indicated in the graph. 
 
Refurbishment Projects relates to renovations, upgrades and/or repairs to existing assets. 
The work is undertaken to ensure that the existing capacity is maintained in terms of 
output requirements.  
 
Extension Projects relates to work undertaken to increase the capacity of the existing 
assets.  
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Projects are implemented in the three (3) regions of Bloem Water, namely Orange River 
Region, Caledon River Region and Modder River Region. Besides the refurbishment 
projects, projects of significance are listed below per region. 
 
Orange River Region (ORR) 
 
Project Remarks/Status 

Bethulie gravity line Completed 

Springfontein/Trompsburg water supply 

200 mm diameter pipeline 

Completed 

Extend treatment capacity of Bethulie WTP Construction stage. 

New 2 Mℓ reservoir (Springfontein) Construction stage. 

Construction of new sludge lagoons at 

Gariep and Phillippolis 

Practical Completion 

 

Modder River Region (MRR) 
 

Project Remarks/Status 

Bulk water supply to Yoxford  Completed 

New raw-water pump set Completed 

New clear-water pump set Construction stage 

Increase reservoir capacity at OK Construction stage 

Groothoek sludge dams Construction stage 

Extension of sludge lagoons at Rustfontein Practical Completion 

Extend treatment capacity at Rustfontein WTP Feasibility stage. 

New pipeline Rustfontein to Botshabelo Design Stage 

Replace Marago Pipeline AC with PVC 10km Tender Stage 

Increase Reservoir Capacity at OK Practical Completion 

 
  

Engineering and Projects 



 

 

78 | P a g e  
 
Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 

 

 

 
 
Caledon River Region (CRR) 
Project Remarks/Status 

Upgrading of the Caledon/Bloemfontein 

pipeline (last 35 km) 

Design Stage 

Welbedacht sludge dams Procurement concluded. Construction to 

commence 

Reservoir 5 year inspection and resealing Execution stage 

The Caledon/Bloemfontein pipeline, the De 

Hoek Rising Main 

Practical Completion 

Extend Novo pumping capacity Execution Stage 

Pipeline between Welbedacht and 

Knellpoort 

Consultant appointed 

 

Bloemfontein Head Office/Other 
Project Remarks/Status 

Boreholes Refurbishment and upgrading of pumping 

system 

Bloemfontein Office extension Tender stage 

Single quarters in the different regions Practical Completion Stage 

 
Future Budgets 
The budgets for Capital Expenditure Extension Programmes for the next three financial 
years are indicated below: 
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Employment Opportunities 
A total of 679 temporary opportunities were created on projects in the financial year 
under review. The summary per category is indicated in the pie chart: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Projects implemented on behalf of DWA 
Bloem Water serves as implementing agent on various projects for the Department of 
Water Affairs and the status of the projects for the year under review are indicated in 
the table below: 
 
Project Remarks 

Naledi and Mantsopa IRS Draft Completed 

Naledi MWIG intervention – various 

projects 

Procurement and installation of pumps 

concluded. 

Naledi, Mohokare, Kopanong MWIG 

Projects 

Business Plans concluded 

 
  

Engineering and Projects 
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Human Resources 
 
 

As a key profession concerned with the people in the 
Organization, the Human Resources Department 
recognizes its potential to act as the catalyst for 
maximizing the value that employees can contribute. This 
however requires the transition of the Human Resources 
Department from the conventional delivery of 
transactional HR services to the adoption of practices 
and roles through which HR adds competitive value to 
the core business. 
 
The Human Resources Department continued the 
professional development of staff to improve knowledge 
and understanding in its quest to remain a strategic 
partner of the institution. 
 
“Teamwork is the ability to work together towards a 
common vision” Andrew Carnegie 

 
 

As a key profession concerned with the people in the Organization, the Human 
Resources Department recognizes its potential to act as the catalyst for maximizing the 
value that employees can contribute. This however requires the transition of the Human 
Resources Department from the conventional delivery of transactional HR services to 
the adoption of practices and roles through which HR adds competitive value to the 
core business. 
 
The Human Resources Department continued the professional development of staff to 
improve knowledge and understanding in its quest to remain a strategic partner of the 
institution. 
 
Enterprise Performance 
The performance framework and environment of Bloem Water is now well established.  
The quarterly performance assessments and feedback, despite proving to be more 
time-consuming, proved successful in focusing employees on doing and measuring the 
right things.  
 
Performance review ratings were analyzed and interventions undertaken where 
inconsistent application or a lack of understanding was evident. Workshops were held in 
regional offices to enhance the interpretation and application of assessment 
techniques. A total of 1255 assessment documents were completed and analysed. 
Employees received quarterly feedback on their performance outcomes and training 
requirements were duly included in the workplace skills plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Sandra Meyer 
Executive: HR 
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Quarterly operational plan meetings are held supported by portfolio’s of evidence for 
annual verification by the external auditors. The targets are aligned with strategic 
objectives of the Board which in turn support National Objectives. 
 
Organisational Development & Recruitment 
Bloem Water continued its surge of growth with a further increase of 13% in the 
workforce compared to 7.98% measured during the previous period. The recruitment of 
technical/operational staff was again prioritised to enhance operational performance. 
 
Bloem Water’s reputation as an employer is essential to attracting apposite candidates 
with organisational culture fit. Without adequate marketing of Bloem Water, top 
candidates may not be aware of employment opportunities. To this end vacancies are 
now posted on the website supplementary to newspaper recruitment. 
 
An induction handbook was developed to facilitate a smooth transition of recruits into 
the workplace and to improve induction practices. At the same time exit processes 
were enhanced and analysed, providing useful management information on reasons 
employees terminate their services at Bloem Water. Staff turnover remains below the 5% 
target which can be attributed to good staff engagement.  
 
The engagement index for the period measured at 69% compared to 72% in the 
previous period. Feedback sessions were held on areas measuring less than 65% to 
improve a mutual understanding of perceived challenges as voiced by employees 
whilst assisting management to identify opportunities to improve work life. 
 
Organisational and employee effectiveness 
Line management and the Human Resources Department worked collaboratively with 
each other on major organisation and employee development initiatives. 
Organizational design and development, roles and structures, job descriptions and 
recruitment are but some of the areas of joint decision-making to promote a value-
added and strategic service to the institution.  “High performing companies should strive 
to create a great place for great people to do great work.” Marilyn Carlson 
 
The Human Resources Department produces quarterly metrics to Line Managers 
providing detailed information whilst identifying emerging trends and/or patterns. These 
metrics indicate issues that may require action, particularly on the management of 
absenteeism, overtime and staff turnover. The report includes demographic data to 
assist with effective planning.  
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Age Profile 
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Employee and Labour Relations 
Labour relations improved from adversity to participation. The Local Labour Forum is fully 
efficient following a dysfunctional structure reported in the previous period. The forum 
was equipped and trained on the forum’s constitution while roles and responsibilities 
were clarified. Shop Steward elections were held and vacancies accordingly filled. The 
forum now engages rigorously concerning relevant matters and from a mandated 
position to facilitate progress. 
 
The number of disputes decreased from 12 in the previous period to 2 in the year under 
review which is indicative of improved employee relations and a conducive working 
environment.  
 
Management and the two representative Unions successfully negotiated a wage 
agreement at plant level, yielding a wage agreement for all staff in the bargaining unit 
of Bloem Water. This was the first time in many years where wage negotiations were 
concluded by the due salary review date. 
 
Benefit Administration 
The Department is pleased to report on an improvement in the turnaround time of 
processing Pension Fund termination claims. Payments were made within 10 days on 
average from the Administrators having received the required documentation and 
actuarial value. 
 
The Department developed a user manual setting out various processes during the 
employee life cycle. Synergy was achieved between pension fund and HR processes 
which improved claim efficiencies. 5 Retirement claims, 5 death claims and 6 
withdrawal claims were concluded during the year under review. 
 
Pension fund governance was further streamlined during the year to ensure compliance 
with Pension Fund Circular PF130 and in pursuit of best practices.  
 
The Human Resources Department embarked on a drive to obtain updated beneficiary 
nomination forms and measured a 96% success rate in the return of same.   
 
A retirement seminar was hosted for members within 5 years of retirement. The intention 
is to prepare employees close to retirement and provide perspectives on pension 
investment options.  These seminars will henceforth be hosted annually. 
 
  

Human Resources 
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Corporate Support 
 

 
The Corporate Support Department carries a 
mandated executive power in terms of statutory 
requirement in relation to Skills Development, 
Employment Equity, Safety, Health, Environment and 
Quality (SHEQ), Employees’ Wellness, Twinning 
Programme and Information Technology. 
 
The commitment to Corporate Support is seen through 
several categories such as employee capacity 
development, skills and performance enhancement, 
providing advance working tools and equipment, 
integrating health systems to the workplace for the 
enrichment of employee wellbeing, commitment to 
values such as fairness, participation and transparency 
and application of advanced technology working 
tools. 
 

 
 

 
Employee Development and Performance Enhancement 
Bloem Water’s main focus on employee development is to instil a strategy that 
addresses skills shortage and facilitates the promotion and acceleration of quality 
training for all in the workplace through skills programmes, academic qualifications and 
recognition of prior learning interventions through apprenticeships. The skills analysis is 
conducted on a quarterly basis to align with the work demands of the Organisation. This 
analysis is done through the performance enhancement system. Additionally, in-house 
training is conducted after the quarterly performance assessments are performed by 
senior Management to fill the gaps on the practical side of training which includes 
mentoring and coaching. 
 
For external and the unemployed individuals, Bloem Water is actively involved in 
Learnership, Apprenticeship and Internship Programmes. 
 
During the year under review, academically qualified graduates were afforded an 
opportunity in the Intern Programme to render various core and support functions. In 
addition, Bloem Water continues to appoint the Grade 12 Learners - to be trained in 
core functional areas of electrical, mechanical and water care. The Exchange 
Programme also contributed in benchmarking of scarce skills and knowledge 
exchange.  
  

Thandeka Kgantsi 
Executive: Corporate Support 
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Skills Development 
The main focus on skills development is to develop a strategy on how best skills shortage 
in Bloem Water can be addressed and an approach developed to provide an overview 
of some of the current initiatives which are being undertaken that could have a 
profound influence on the way in which the employees are trained and developed. 
During the year under review, Bloem Water has advanced in capacitating the 
employees focusing in all functional areas. The training has centred on high level 
courses which are offered by reputable universities and other education institutions. 
Management level has benefited from these courses. The middle level skilled personnel 
have also been advanced in learning in order to meet the demand that is being 
encountered by the Organisation. This approach has ensured the development and the 
need to implement a mandatory skills retention strategy that would enable the 
Organisation to maintain adequate levels of critical competencies. Bloem Water skills 
development is resultant from the Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) that is developed and 
submitted to EWSETA yearly. 
 
Bloem Water continues to work in partnership with the Department of Water Affairs with 
regard to identification of the relevant training for the water purification personnel. The 
Provincial Department of Public Works has a working partnership with Bloem Water with 
regards to the placement of interns who require practical experience in project 
management.   
 
The Learners as mentioned above are being accelerated through the Apprenticeship 
Programme to be trained as qualified Artisans. The Learners who have completed the 
assessment and passed the Trade Test were absorbed in permanent positions as fully 
fledged Artisans and Instrumentation Technicians. 
 
Furthermore, the Internship Programme is intended for the appointment of Interns in the 
various support functions, learning and performance areas which include 
administration, finance and human resources. 
 
The information below is indicative of the latest training assistance provided. The short 
courses and Skills Programme are encouraged to build the competencies of employees 
in relation to current positions held and to prepare employees for advancement to 
more senior occupation categories. 
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Academic Qualifications: Assistance during the 2012/2013 Financial Year 

Occupational Group Band Priority Training / skills needs African  Coloured Asian White 
M F M F M F M F 

 
Craft and related workers 5 & 6 Technical Skills (Mechanical, 

electrical and maintenance) 
3        

 
Plant machine Operators 
and assemblers 

5 & 6 Project Management    1     

Water Treatment       1  

 
Administration and 
related profession 

 B. Tech: Office Management and 
Technology 

1        

Diploma: Supply Chain 
Management 

 1       

B Com    1       

 

Short Courses: Assistance during the 2012/2013 Financial Year 

Occupational Group Band Priority Training /skills needs African  Coloured Asian White 
M F M F M F M F 

Senior Officials and 
Managers 

7 & 8 SHE Accountability for Managers 8 6      14 
Bid Committee Training 4 1      2 
Handling Disciplinary Hearing  1       1 
Case Law Updates  1 2      1 
Being a Director - Part 1-3 1 2     1  
Water Leaks  2      2  
Risk Assessment ISO 5 3     5 2 
Interviewing Techniques 1       1 
IT Maximo 7.Report Writing 6      3 1 
Negotiation Skills  2        
Change Management  1 1       
IT Corporate Governance   6 4     5 2 
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Occupational Group Band Priority Training /skills needs African  Coloured Asian White 
M F M F M F M F 

Craft and related workers 
and Junior Management 

6 Chlorine Handling 18 7     7 1 

 Dam Management  5 3 3  1  6  
Adroit  3 2 2    4  
Conveying of Hazardous Goods 8  2    3  

 Wiring Code  1    1  1  
Substation Planning Layout        1  
Change Management 9 3 1 1   4  
HAZMAT Awareness 8 4 3 2 1  5  

 
Plant machine Operators 
and assemblers 

5 Water Quality Management 6 2     6  
Green and Blue Drop   3        

Crane Operator 4        
Laboratory Analytical training 1        
Change Management 6 3 1    3 1 
Chlorine Handling  8 5 2    5 1 

 Handling hazardous chemicals 8 5     7  
 Administration and 
related profession 

4 Contract Management   1       
Payroll administration  1      1 

Conflict and Supervisory Skills  6 7 1 2  1  4 

Archive and Records 
Management 

5 6  1  1  3 

Effective Training Management  1 1       

Emotional Intelligence 6 7 2 1  1 4 3 

  Lay Counselling  2 1       

 

Literacy Training 

Occupational Group Band  Priority Training/skills needs African  Coloured Asian White 
M F M F M F M F 

Elementary Occupations 2&3 OHS Awareness 20 5 2 2 0 0 2 3 

 Fire Fighting  7 8       

Lay Counselling  2 8       
Crane Training 2        
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Learnership and Internship Programme for external unemployed youth 

Occupational Group Priority Training/skills needs African Coloured Asian White 
M F M F M F M F 

Plant machine Operators and 
assemblers 

Water Care NQF 2 8 4       

 
Craft and related workers 
 

Mechanical Artisanship 6 2       

Electrical Artisanship 3 2       

 
Administration and related 
profession 

Finance and Administration  1 1       

 Supply Chain  1        

 

Directors 

Occupational Group Priority Training/skills needs African Coloured Asian White 
M F M F M F M F 

Directors Being a Director -  Part 1-4  1     1  

World Water Congress  2     1  

 
 
Exchange Programme and Twinning Partnership 
In addition to the skills development initiatives aforementioned, Bloem Water advocates 
skills transfer through the Fredskorpset Twinning Partnership and other Water Boards 
which support the Employee Exchange Programme. This partnership contributes towards 
lasting improvements in the economic, social and political conditions of the population 
of partner developing countries, with particular emphasis on ensuring that development 
assistance benefits the poor and promotes a just world based on the recognition of 
fundamental human rights.   
 
The Programme has contributed immensely to promotion of reciprocal learning and 
critical skills enhancement and has helped participants in integrating their know-how 
and experience in the overall development of the participatory organisations. The 
Exchange Programme with other Water Boards has contributed to skills transfer in water 
quality management and engineering services. 
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Change Management 
The employees at Bloem Water were empowered through the change management 
sessions that were aimed at equipping the newly appointed employees to understand 
the rationale for the Organisation to undergo a change. The change management 
process was introduced as an inclusive methodology that would allow employees to 
fairly participate in the process. The ADKAR (Awareness, Desire, Knowledge, Ability and 
Reinforcement) Model was adopted as the tool that would be used to drive the 
change route. 
 
Employee Wellness Programmes 
The Bloem Water Employee Wellness Programme (EWP) is aimed at integrating all 
Wellness Programmes and to provide value to employees through direct involvement 
with their internal Workplace Programmes as well as externally focused initiatives, and 
providing a supportive work environment for those afflicted and affected by various 
ailments and circumstances. Bloem Water has appointed an external counsellor who 
brings expertise, neutrality and confidentiality within the Programme. Health Calendar 
Days are also observed as means to conduct voluntary testing. 
 
Wellness Interventions 
Bloem Water continues to implement the wellness interventions as assistance tools to 
manage the health and wellness of employees in areas of affliction to promote greater 
employee productivity. 
 
Educational sessions are held with Lay Counsellors regularly in order to equip them to 
deal with employee questions in health-related issues. Employees are involved in 
wellness activities thereby claiming ownership of the Programme. Employee Wellness 
Day was celebrated on 12 May 2012 within Bloem Water and was graced by the 
presence of Lepelle Northern Water Board from Limpopo Province, South Africa. 
 
The Wellness Programme is inclusive of the HIV/Aids and disease management 
initiatives. Workshops continue to be conducted by the Wellness Committee to ensure 
that employees are aware of the Policies and understand the contents of the Policies; 
that all target groups are reached, discussion and participation is encouraged and the 
buy-in thereof. Monthly reports are submitted on the utilisation of the services which 
distinguish the areas where employees are afflicted. 
 
Bloem Water continues to make a contribution towards minimising the social, economic 
and developmental consequences of the disease and will pursue to form alliances and 
build partnerships in order to develop a common vision and shared strategy with all 
stakeholders. 
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Health, Safety, Environment and Quality 
Bloem Water complies with the requirements of the Occupational Health and Safety 
Act, Act 85 of 1993 and has developed a Safety, Health, Environment and Quality 
Statement in line with OHSAS 18001, ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 standard requirements. 
Relevant Committees have been established to ensure that employees are provided 
with information, instructions, training and supervision as may be necessary to ensure, as 
far as is reasonably possible, their health and safety whilst on duty. Various Programmes 
for improved health and safety in the workplace are being undertaken. This includes risk 
management on all offices and Plants which then forms the basis of the Health and 
Safety Work Plan.  Bloem Water is in the process of implementing the Integrated 
Management Systems (SHEQ) which is aimed at improving the Organisation to acquire 
the accreditation. 
 
In preparation for emergencies employees in all the three (3) regions i.e. Caledon, 
Orange and Modder Regions as well as Head office, were trained in Fire Rescue Training 
as well Hazmat Awareness that qualifies them to be first responders in emergencies. 
 
An Environment Aspects and Impacts and Operational Control and Waste 
Management Policy was also developed to address issues of environmental 
compliance. 
 
Employment Equity, Gender Equality and Women in Bloem Water 
Bloem Water commits itself to the formulation, implementation and monitoring of an 
Employment Equity Programme as part of the Organisation’s Strategic Plan by providing 
training and development opportunities for employees. A comprehensive Employment 
Equity Plan has been reviewed and approved by the Board for 2012-2017 to provide 
guidance to the implementation of the EE targets. An Employment Equity Report which 
entails the progress on the implementation of the Plan and achievement of the 
numerical targets is submitted to the Department of Labour annually. Bloem Water is 
currently at 75% to reach the numerical goals that were planned for the EE Plan that 
expired in 2012.  
 
The Plan has been posted to the intranet for easy retrieval. The Manual is also displayed 
on the regional notice boards for the employees who do not have access to the 
intranet. Sessions with employees are being held for update on the progress on 
representation.   
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Current representation on occupational levels 
Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each occupational 
level 
 
Note: A = Africans 
 B = Coloureds 
 I = Indians 
 W = Whites 

Occupational Levels Designated Non-designated  
Male Female White 

Male 
Foreign 
Nationals 

Total 

A C I A C I W W M F 
Top Management 2 0 0 3 0 0 1 1 0 0 7 
Senior Management 3 0 0 2 0 0 1 4 0 0 10 
Professional qualified, experienced 
Specialists and mid-Management 

11 3 0 3 0 0 2 1 0 0 20 

Skilled technical, academically-
qualified workers,  junior Management, 
Supervisors, Foremen and 
Superintendents 

28 2 1 5 0 1 3 17 0 0 57 

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision-
making 

71 2 0 11 2 0 7 3 0 0 96 

Unskilled and defined decision-making 67 3 0 9 0 0 0 3 0 0 82 
TOTAL PERMANENT 182 10 1 33 2 1 14 29 0 0 272 
Non-permanent employees 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 
GRAND TOTAL 182 10 1 38 2 1 14 29 0 0 277 
 
 
On gender equality, Bloem Water’s main objective is to incorporate a gender-sensitive 
perspective into all Bloem Water’s programme planning and implementation without 
being constrained by the fixed or stereotyped environment. The Corporate Support 
Department is tasked with overseeing the implementation of specific gender-related 
projects in concert and consultation with all other Departments. Emerging women 
contractors received preference for executing the internal projects. 
 
Information Technology 
During the period under review, the IT Department has continued its effort to increase 
the usability and effectiveness of the Intranet with the added functionality of a GIS 
system which allows full integration of Maximo and Water Model data onto an online 
GIS system. The GIS system was also showcased at the recent Water Week Conference 
held at Sun City where it was well accepted by other stakeholders in the water industry. 
The systems are being reviewed in order to establish the gaps and to advance the 
accessibility and usage of the IT systems to all users. 
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In an effort to ensure an increased ability to overcome disasters that could lead to 
computer and data loss, the IT Department has introduced Virtualization of the file 
servers in the Bloemfontein office through VM Ware. Through virtualization a file server 
environment is created that is completely redundant to allow for seamless disaster 
recovery. The virtual environment consists of three virtual hosts and two network storage 
devices. One of the hosts as well as one of the storage devices are located in the off-
site backup room and are kept purely as failover equipment to be used in the event of 
hardware losses of one of the two primary hosts. This virtual environment will allow Bloem 
Water to resume operations within hours after a disaster and with a maximum data loss 
of 30 minutes. This is so far the most critical emergency plan that is available. 
 

Achievements at a Glimpse 
The achievements include the following: 
 

· The successful Internship Programme which addresses the skills gap in the 
technical field of study. 

 
· The continuation of the Learnership Programme with special focus on scarce skills.  

 
· The improvement of employment equity targets and representation of 

designated group in senior and middle management. 
 

· The continuation of Fredskorpset Skills Exchange Programme which addresses the 
exchange of knowledge and skills development. 

 
· The continued Twinning Partnerships between Bloem Water and other water 

utilities locally, regionally and internationally including these countries:  Lepelle 
Northern Water Board and Midvaal Water (South Africa), Northern Region Water 
Board (Malawi), Nkana Water and Sewerage Company (Zambia), Water and 
Sewerage Company (Lesotho) and Water Utilities (Botswana). 

 
· The celebrations of 15 years in twinning partnership between Bloem Water and 

Northern Region Water Board of Malawi. Furthermore, about 20 employees have 
been exchanged between the two partners for the purpose of reciprocal 
learning and sharing of best practices.   

 
· NQF2 Water and Waste Water Certification for 25 employees. 

 
· The Integrated Management Systems (IMS) which will contribute towards the 

accreditation standard for Bloem Water.  
 

· The advancement of the IT Systems for optimal productivity.   
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Entity information 
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Auditor: KPMG Incorporated 
 
Bankers: First National Bank of Southern Africa Limited 
 ABSA Bank 
 Investec Bank 
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Country of incorporation: South Africa 
 
Legal form: Schedule 3 B entity 
 
Nature of business: The supply of purified and un-purified water 
 
 
 
Contents Page 
  
Statement of responsibilities and approval 
 

95 

Report of the Audit Committee 96 - 97 
  
Independent auditor’s report 98 - 100 
  
Statement of financial position 101 
  
Statement of comprehensive income 102 
  
Statement of changes in equity 103 
  
Statement of cash flows 104 
  
Notes to the financial statements 105 - 137 
  
Detailed income statement 138 - 139 
  



 

 

95 | P a g e  
 

Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 
 

 

Bloem Water 
 
Statement of responsibilities and approval 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 
 
The Board is responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation, fair 
presentation and integrity of the financial statements and related information. The auditors are 
responsible to report on the fair presentation of these financial statements. The financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (SA GAAP) and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, Act No. 1 of 1999 and other enabling legislation. 
 
The Board also prepared the other information included in the annual report and is responsible for both 
its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements. 
 
The Board is also responsible for such internal controls as the Board determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. These controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the 
reliability of the financial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability 
of assets, and to prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the 
Board to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and 
systems has occurred during the year under review. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis since the Board has every 
reason to believe that Bloem Water has adequate resource in place to continue in operation for the 
foreseeable future. 
 
The independent auditing firm KPMG Incorporated has audited the annual financial statements. They 
have been given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all 
meetings of the Board and committees of the Board. The Board believes that all representations made 
to the independent auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate. The audit report is presented 
as part of the annual financial statements. 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by the Chief Executive. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dr L Moorosi 
Chief Executive 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Date 
  

30 October 2013 
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Bloem Water 
 
Report of the Audit Committee 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 
 
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended on 30 June 2013.  
 
Audit Committee Responsibility  
The Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38(1)(a) of 
the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  
 
The Committee also reports that it has adopted an appropriate formal Terms of Reference as its Audit 
Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged its 
responsibilities as contained therein.  
 
The effectiveness of internal control  
The system of internal control is designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are 
safeguarded and that liabilities are efficiently managed. In line with the PFMA and the King III 
Report on Corporate Governance requirements, internal audit provides the Committee and the Board 
an assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the 
risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested 
enhancements to the controls and processes.  
 
Bloem Water operates in a challenging environment, from strategic, business and operational 
perspectives. From the various reports of the internal Auditors, a number of areas were highlighted 
that required control improvement. Management has put processes and systems in place to address 
these issues.  
 
Despite these weaknesses, we can report that overall, the systems of internal control during the 
2012/2013 financial period were effective and efficient. The Committee, therefore, considers Bloem 
Water’s internal controls and systems appropriate in all material respects to:  
 
· Reduce Bloem Water’s overall risks to an acceptable level  
· Ensure Bloem Water’s assets are adequately safeguarded  
· Meet business objectives of Bloem Water.  
 
The quality of in-year management and quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and 
the Division of Revenue Act.  
 
We are satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by 
the Organisation during the year under review.  
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Bloem Water 
 
Report of the Audit Committee 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
Evaluation of Financial Statements  
 
The Audit Committee has:  
 
· Reviewed and discussed with the external Auditors and Management the Annual Financial 

Statements (AFS) to be included in the Annual Report;  
· Reviewed the external Auditors’ Audit Report and Management responses thereto;  
· Reviewed the accounting policies and practices;  
· Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit;  
· Reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prior to publication both for fair presentation and for 

conformity with the South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (SA 
GAAP).  

 
Conclusion  
The Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of Bloem Water for the period ending 
30 June 2013 and concluded that they comply, in all material aspects, to the requirements of the 
PFMA No.1 of 1999 (as amended) and the South African Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (SA GAAP). The Committee also agreed that the adoption of the going concern 
premise is appropriate in preparing Bloem Water’s Annual Financial Statements. The Committee, 
therefore, recommended the adoption of the Annual Financial Statements by the Board at its meeting 
on 21 October 2013.  
 
The Committee notes and supports the conclusions of the external Auditors, and is of the opinion that 
the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the 
independent Auditors.  
 
The Committee would like to congratulate Management on obtaining an unqualified audit report.  
 
 
 
 
 
N MOKHESI  
CHAIRPERSON TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
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Independent auditor’s report to Parliament and the Executive Authority, the Minister of Water 
and Environmental Affairs on Bloem Water 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Bloem Water as set out on pages 101 to 137, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the statements of comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising  a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
The Accounting Authority’s responsibility for the financial statements 
 
The Board of Directors which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with South African Statements of 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, and for such internal control as the Accounting Authority determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, the General Notice 
issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Bloem Water as at 30 June 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa. 
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Independent auditor’s report to Parliament and the Executive Authority, the Minister of Water 
and Environmental Affairs on Bloem Water 
(continued) 
 
 
 
Other matter 
 
We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. The 
supplementary schedule set out on pages 138 to 139 does not form part of the financial statements and 
is presented as additional information. We have not audited this schedule and accordingly we do not 
express an opinion on it. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Public Audit Act Requirements (PAA) 
 
In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, and the General Notice issued in terms 
thereof, we report the following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, 
compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion. 
 
Predetermined objectives 
 
We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in 
the Report on Performance against the strategic plan as set out on pages 140 to 148 of the annual 
report, and reported thereon to the Accounting Authority. 
 
The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria 
of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to 
whether it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 
whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of 
information further relates to whether indicators and targets are measureable (i.e. well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury 
Framework for managing programme performance information. 
 
The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine whether 
it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 
 
There were no material findings on the Report on Performance against the strategic plan concerning 
the usefulness and reliability of the information. 
 
Additional matter 
 
Although no material findings concerning the usefulness and reliability of the performance 
information were identified, we drew attention to the following matter in our report to the directors: 
 
Achievement of planned targets 
 
Of the total 21 planned targets, only 16 were achieved during the year under review. This represents 
24% of total planned targets that were not achieved during the year under review. The directors have 
presented reasons for variations from planned targets in the Report on Performance against the 
strategic plan. 
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Independent auditor’s report to Parliament and the Executive Authority, the Minister of Water 
and Environmental Affairs on Bloem Water 
(continued) 
 
 
 
Compliance with laws and regulations 
 
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and 
regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. 
 
We did not identify instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws 
and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA. 
 
Internal control 
 
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, Report on 
Performance against the strategic plan and compliance with laws and regulations. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we considered sufficiently significant for inclusion in this 
report. 
 
Other reports 
 
Agreed upon procedures engagements 
 
We were engaged by the Accounting Authority to perform agreed upon procedures on the 
performance contracts of the entity and reported the results thereof on 23 October 2012. 
 
 
KPMG Inc. 
Registered Auditor 
 
 
 
 
 
Per:  O Wentworth 
Chartered Accountant (SA) 
Registered Auditor 
Director 

30 October 2013 
 
200 Nelson Mandela Road 
Bloemfontein 
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Bloem Water 
 
Statement of financial position 
at 30 June 2013 
 
 
 
 Note 2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
Assets     
     
Non-current assets  740 506  640 578 
     
Property, plant and equipment 2 720 509  627 510 
Defined benefit asset 16 19 997  13 068 
     
Current assets  329 318  321 966 
     
Inventories 3 9 424  8 119 
Trade and other receivables 4 49 895  75 809 
Short term investments 5 176 541  176 023 
Cash and cash equivalents 6 93 458  62 015 
     
     
Total assets  1 069 824  962 544 
     
     
Equity and liabilities     
     
Capital and reserves  747 299  684 177 
     
Retained earnings  533 954  471 709 
Capital replacement fund  87 350  87 350 
Capital development fund  70 217  70 217 
Insurance fund  8 178  7 301 
Asset DWA reserve fund  43 579  43 579 
Revaluation reserve  4 021  4 021 
     
Non-current liabilities     
     
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 7 176 470  199 449 
     
Current liabilities  146 055  78 918 
     
Current portion of interest bearing loans and borrowings 7 70 388  35 357 
Trade and other payables 8 75 667  43 561 
     
     
Total equity and liabilities  1 069 824  962 544 
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Bloem Water 
 
Statement of comprehensive income 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 
 Note 2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
     
     
Revenue 10 376 954  325 160 
     
Water abstraction costs  (26 099)  (25 272) 
     
Gross income  350 855  299 889 
     
Other income 10.1 2 224  4 505 
Chemicals  (13 828)  (14 566) 
Depreciation  (39 292)  (37 344) 
Distribution cost  (11 702)  (9 152) 
Energy cost  (65 742)  (51 393) 
Repairs and maintenance  (9 204)  (10 513) 
Staff costs  (97 676)  (79 659) 
(Impairment) / reversal of impairment of trade receivables 4 (16 828)  3 298 
Operating expenses  (38 087)  (22 933) 
     
Operating profit 11 60 720  82 131 
     
Finance income 12 16 706  19 309 
Finance costs 13 (14 303)  (17 934) 
     
Profit for the year  63 123  83 507 
     
Total comprehensive income for the year  63 123  83 507 
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Bloem Water 
 

Statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2013  
 
 
 
 Note 2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
Retained earnings     
     
Opening balance  471 709  389 030 
Total comprehensive income for the year  63 123  83 507 
Transfer from / (to) the insurance fund  (878)  (828) 
     
Closing balance  533 954  471 709 
     
Capital replacement fund     
     
Opening balance  87 350  87 350 
Transfer from / (to) retained earnings  -  - 
     
Closing balance  87 350  87 350 
     
Capital development fund     
     
Opening balance  70 217  70 217 
Transfer from / (to) retained earnings  -  - 
     
Closing balance  70 217  70 217 
     
Insurance fund     
     
Opening balance  7 301  6 474 
Transfer from / (to) retained earnings  878  828 
     
Closing balance  8 178  7 301 
     
Asset DWA reserve fund     
     
Opening balance  43 579  43 579 
Transfer from / (to) retained earnings  -  - 
     
Closing balance  43 579  43 579 
     
Revaluation reserve     
     
Opening balance  4 021  4 021 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  -  - 
     
Closing balance  4 021  4 021 
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Bloem Water 
 
Statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 
 
 Note 2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
     
Cash flow from operating activities     
     
Net cash inflow from operating activities  146 337  77 743 
     
Cash received from customers  386 039  287 803 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees      (235 608)      (206 994) 
     
Cash generated from operating activities 14.1 150 431  80 809 
Finance income  16 706  19 309 
Finance costs (including borrowing cost capitalised)  (20 800)  (22 375) 
     
Cash flow from investing activities     
     
Net cash outflow from investing activities  (126 378)  (68 398) 
     

To expand capacity     
     

Additions to property, plant and equipment  (126 486)  (69 839) 
     

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  108  1 441 
     
Cash flow from financing activities     
     
Net cash generated / (utilised) in financing activities  12 052  (27 648) 
     
Interest bearing borrowings raised  41 267  - 
Repayments made on interest bearing borrowings  (29 215)  (27 648) 
     
     
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  32 011  (18 303) 
     
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  237 912  256 215 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14.2 269 923  237 912 
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Bloem Water 
 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 
 
1. Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

 
1.1. Basis of preparation and measurement 
 
 Basis of measurement 
 
 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where otherwise 

indicated. The financial statements are presented in South African Rand (R) (rounded to the nearest 
thousand (R’000) except where otherwise indicated), which is the functional and presentation 
currency. 

 
Statement of compliance 
 
The financial statements of Bloem Water have been prepared in accordance with South African 
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa, Act No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA). 
 

1.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 
 
SA GAAP will be withdrawn and it will cease to apply to Bloem Water. The financial statements 
of Bloem Water for the year ending 30 June 2014 will need to be converted to either International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) or Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP). 
 
The financial reporting framework to be applied in future years is still being considered by National 
Treasury and other stakeholders. 
 
In the event of a transition to IFRS, there are new or revised Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations in issue that are not yet effective.  These include the following Standards and 
Interpretations that are applicable to the business of the entity and will have an impact on future 
financial statements; these will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory unless 
otherwise indicated: 
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Bloem Water 
 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
 
1.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

 
 

Standard or Interpretation The Board is of the opinion that the impact of the 
application of the remaining Standards and 
Interpretations will be as follows: 

Effective for the financial year end commencing 1 July 2013 
IFRS 13 Fair Value 
Measurement 

The standard will be applied prospectively and 
comparatives will not be restated. 
IFRS 13 introduces a single source of guidance on fair 
value measurement for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities by defining fair value, 
establishing a framework for measuring fair value and 
setting out disclosures requirements for fair value 
measurements. The key principles in IFRS 13 are as 
follows: 
· Fair value is an exit price 
· Measurement considers characteristics of the 

asset or liability and not entity-specific 
characteristics 

· Measurement assumes a transaction in the entity’s 
principle  (or most advantageous) market between 
market participants 

· Price is not adjusted for transaction costs 
· Measurement maximises the use of relevant 

observable inputs and minimises the use of 
unobservable inputs  

· The three-level fair value hierarchy is extended to 
all fair value measurements 

The impact on the financial statements for Bloem 
Water cannot be reasonably estimated as at 30 June 
2013. 
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Bloem Water 
 

Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
1.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

 
Standard or Interpretation The Board is of the opinion that the impact of the 

application of the remaining Standards and Interpretations 
will be as follows: 

Effective for the financial year end commencing 1 July 2013 
IAS 19 (amendments) Employee 
Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans 

In terms of the amendments, the following key changes will 
have an impact on the entity: 
· Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately 

in other comprehensive income. The corridor method 
and the recognition of actuarial gains and losses in 
profit or loss are no longer permitted.  

· Past service costs as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments / settlements are recognised in profit or 
loss. 

· Expected returns on plan assets are calculated based 
on the rates used to discount the defined benefit 
obligation. 

· The definitions of short-term and other long-term 
employee benefits have been amended and the 
distinction between the two depends on when the 
entity expects the benefit to be settled.  

The impact on the financial statements for Bloem Water is 
considered to be significant. The unrecognised actuarial 
losses to be recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income is expected to amount to approximately R59 
million. Retained earnings and the pension fund asset are 
expected to decrease with approximately R59 million (i.e. a 
pension fund liability of approximately R40 million will 
exist). Additional amendments are of a presentation nature 
and will not have a significant impact on the entity’s 
financial statements. 

IFRS 1 amendment Government 
Loans 

The amendment provides an additional relief to first-time 
adopters of IFRS from retrospectively measuring 
government loans with a below-market rate of interest. The 
amendments address concerns that the retrospective 
measurement of these government loans at fair value at 
their dates of origination could lead to first-time adopters 
applying hindsight.  
The impact on the financial statements for Bloem Water is 
not expected to be material. 

IFRS 7 amendment Disclosures 
– Offsetting Financial Assets 
and Financial Liabilities 

The amendments contain new disclosure requirements for 
financial assets and financial liabilities that are offset in the 
statement of financial position; or are subject to enforceable 
master netting arrangements or similar agreements. 
The impact on the financial statements for Bloem Water 
cannot be reasonably estimated as at 30 June 2013.  
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Bloem Water 
 

Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
1.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 
 

Standard or Interpretation The Board is of the opinion that the impact of the 
application of the remaining Standards and Interpretations 
will be as follows: 

Effective for the financial year end commencing 1 July 2014 
IAS 32 Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities 

The amendments clarify that an entity currently has a 
legally enforceable right to set-off if that right is: 

· not contingent on a future event; and 

· enforceable both in the normal course of business and 
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of 
the entity and all counterparties 

The impact on the financial statements for Bloem Water 
cannot be reasonably estimated as at 30 June 2013.  

Effective for the financial year end commencing 1 July 2015 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments IFRS 9 addresses the initial measurement and 

classification of financial assets and financial liabilities 
and will replace the relevant sections of IAS 39. 
Under IFRS 9 there are two options in respect of 
classification of financial assets, namely, financial assets 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value. Financial 
assets are measured at amortised cost when the business 
model is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and when they give rise to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal 
outstanding. All other financial assets are measured at fair 
value. Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from 
hybrid contracts that have a financial asset host. 
The classification and measurement requirements of 
financial liabilities are the same as per IAS 39, except for 
the following two aspects: 
· fair value changes for financial liabilities (other than 

financial guarantees and loan commitments) 
designated at fair value through profit or loss, that are 
attributable to the changes in the credit risk of the 
liability will be presented in other comprehensive 
income (OCI). The remaining amount of the fair 
value change is recognised in profit or loss. However, 
if this requirement creates or enlarges an accounting 
mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value 
change is presented in profit or loss. The 
determination as to whether such presentation would 
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch is made on 
initial recognition and is not subsequently reassessed.  
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Bloem Water 
 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
1.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

 
 

Standard or Interpretation The Board is of the opinion that the impact of the 
application of the remaining Standards and 
Interpretations will be as follows: 

Effective for the financial year end commencing 1 July 2015 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
(continued) 

· Derivative liabilities that are linked to and must be 
settled by delivery of an unquoted equity 
instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably 
measured, are measured at fair value.  

The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to 
transitional provisions. 
The impact on the financial statements for Bloem 
Water cannot be reasonably estimated as at 30 June 
2013. 

 

Standards and interpretations not expected to have an impact on the entity: 

The following Standards and Interpretations are not applicable to the business of the entity and will 
therefore have no impact on future financial statements.  

· IAS 12 amendment Deferred tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 

· IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

· IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 

· IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

· IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (2011) 

· IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) 

· IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 

· IFRIC 21 Levies 
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Bloem Water 
 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
1.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 
 
 The preparation of the entity’s financial statements in conformity with SA GAAP requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the 
reporting date. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised. 

 
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions 
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are set out below: 

 
a) Pension and other post employment benefits 

 
The cost of defined benefit pension plans is determined using actuarial valuations. The 
actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of 
return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to 
the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The 
net pension plan asset at 30 June 2013 is R19 996 802 (2012: R13 068 004). Further details 
are disclosed in note 16. 
 

b) Trade and other receivables 
 
Loans and receivables shall be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables 
carried at amortised costs has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at 
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or 
through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in profit or 
loss. 
 

c) Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
 
Depreciation is based on the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment. The 
estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historical 
performance as well as expectations about future use and therefore require a significant 
degree of judgement to be applied by management. The depreciation rates and residual 
values, if any, represent management’s best estimates.  
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Bloem Water 
 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
1.4 Property, plant and equipment 
 

Land is carried at cost. No depreciation is calculated on land. 
 
Furniture and office equipment are stated initially at cost and subsequently at revalued amounts in 
accordance with the provision of IAS 16 (AC 123) – Property, plant and equipment. Accumulated 
depreciation on revaluations is restated proportionately. 
 
Plant equipment, roads, buildings and pipelines and reservoirs are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management and the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets 
(refer to note 1.13). 
 
Work in progress are stated at cost which includes cost of material, direct labour and any directly 
attributable costs incurred in bringing it to its present location and condition. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When part of an asset is being 
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which it is incurred. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets to 
its residual value at the following rates: 
 
Vehicles and machinery: 15 years 
Plant equipment: 30 years 
Furniture, tools and office equipment: 5 to 25 years 
Roads: 50 years 
Pipeline and reservoirs: 35 years 
Buildings: 60 years 
 
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if 
appropriate, at each financial year-end. When each major inspection is preformed, its cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition 
criteria are satisfied. 
 
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is 
derecognised. 
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Bloem Water 
 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
 
1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

Any revaluation surplus is credited to the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it 
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which 
case the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or 
loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the 
asset revaluation reserve. 

 
The revaluation surplus included in equity in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment 
are transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised. 

 
1.5 Funds and reserves 
 

Capital replacement fund 
 
Amounts as determined by the Board are transferred to a separate fund to be utilised for the 
replacement of capital assets. Amounts equal to such transfers are retained and can be utilised at 
the discretion of the Board. 
 
Capital development fund 
 
Amounts as determined by the Board are transferred from available funds to a separate fund to be 
utilised at the discretion of the Board. The fund is utilised to finance development of capital 
infrastructures. 
 
Insurance fund 
 
At the discretion of the Board, an amount equal to the estimated external insurance premium may 
be transferred to the insurance fund. This fund will be utilised for the replacement of certain 
assets. The funds will be utilised at the discretion of the board. 
 
Asset DWA reserve fund 
 
An amount equal to the value of property, plant and equipment in the Thaba ‘Nchu region 
transferred from the Department of Water Affairs (previously Department of Water Affairs and 
Forestry) to Bloem Water was transferred to this fund. The amount constitutes a non-distributable 
reserve.  
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Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
1.6 Revenue recognition 
 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity and 
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received/receivable excluding discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duties. The following specific 
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 
 
Sale of water 
 
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to 
the buyer, usually on delivery of the water through the water meters. 
 

1.7 Finance income 
 
Finance income comprises interest receivable on trade receivables and finance income from 
investments and cash and cash equivalents. Finance income is recognised as it accrues in profit and 
loss, using the effective interest rate method. 
 

1.8 Dividend income 
 
Dividend income is recognised when the entity’s right to receive payment is established. 
 

1.9 Inventories 
 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted 
average basis. Obsolete, redundant and slow moving inventories are identified and written down to 
their estimated net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale. 
The cost of water inventory comprises of all costs of water abstraction, costs of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition. 
 

1.10 Employee benefits 
 
Pension obligations 

 
The policy of Bloem Water is to provide retirement benefits for all its employees. The fund represents 
a Defined Benefit Plan administered by Jacques Malan Fund Administrators. Obligations for 
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as en expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income as incurred. 
 
The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation 
less past service cost not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the 
obligations are to be settled directly. The value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past service 
cost not yet recognised and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds 
from the plan or reduction in the future contributions to the plan. The cost of providing benefits under 
the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method. 
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Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
(continued) 
 
 
1.10 Employee benefits (continued) 
 

In terms of IAS 19 – Employee Benefits, Bloem Water applies the corridor rule to any actuarial gains 
or losses recognised during the year, meaning that actuarial gains and losses recognised by Bloem 
Water is the excess over the greater of: 
 
a) 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the previous reporting 

period; and 
b) 10% of the fair value of any plan asset at the same date. 
 
As required by the Pension Fund Act 25 of 1956, a qualified actuary performs the valuation. The 
actuarial valuation was performed by Independent Actuarial Consultants (Pty) Limited at reporting 
date. 
 
Short term employee benefits 
 
Short term employee benefits are those that are paid within twelve months after the end of the period 
in which the services have been rendered. Remuneration to employees is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income. Provision is made for accumulated leave, annual bonuses, and other short term 
employee benefits. 

 
1.11 Finance cost 
 

Finance cost comprises interest payable on borrowings and interest resulting from the unwinding of 
discount on liabilities. Borrowing costs which are not capitalised (refer to note 1.13) are recognised in 
profit and loss. 

 
1.12 Financial instruments 
 

Non-derivative financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position comprise of cash 
and cash equivalents, investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and interest 
bearing borrowings. 
 
Long term receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 
 
Financial instruments are initially carried at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequently, the 
instruments are recognised as follows: 
 
Investments and other financial assets 
 
Financial assets with the scope of IAS 39 (AC 133) – Financial Instruments: Recognition of 
Measurement are classified as short term investments, cash and cash equivalents, loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale assets, as appropriate. 
 
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable 
transaction costs. 
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1.12 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

 
Short term investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents that are not accessible within three months are classified as short term 
investments. Short term investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement short term investments are 
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the short term investments are derecognised or 
impaired. 
 
Held-to-maturity investments 
 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified 
as held-to-maturity when the entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After 
initial measurement held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortise cost using the effective 
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the investments are 
derecognised or impaired. 
 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans, trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement loans and receivables are 
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or 
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 
 
Available-for-sale financial investment 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as 
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other financial asset categories. After initial 
measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealised gains or 
losses recognised directly in other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised or 
determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in other 
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. 
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1.12 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The entity assess at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. 
 
For loans and other receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and its present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced by the impairment loss and the loss is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed 
its amortised cost at the reversal date. 
 
For assets carried at cost, if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted 
investment that is not carried at fair value, because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return of a 
similar asset. 
 
Fair value 
 
The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by 
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments 
where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques 
include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another 
instrument which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation modes. 
 
Amortised cost 
 
Held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost. This is 
computed using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation 
takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transactions costs and fees that 
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 
 
General risk management principles 
 
Risk management is of critical importance to the entity as it understands that changing market 
conditions make risk unavoidable. Over the years the entity has sought and implemented a 
comprehensive risk management process to consistently identify, understand and properly manage risk 
at all times. Risk policies, limits and control procedures are continuously monitored. 
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1.13 Borrowing costs 
 

Borrowing costs attributable to the constitution of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost 
of these assets over the period of construction to the extent that the assets are financed by 
borrowings. The capitalisation rate applied is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable 
to the borrowings unless an asset is financed by a specific loan, in which case the specific rate is 
used. 

 
1.14 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and short term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks, cash on 
hand. Short term investments with an original maturity of three months are classified as short term 
investments. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise 
cash at banks, cash on hand and short term investments. 

 

1.15 Leases 
 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the entity, 
are classified as operating leases. Operating leases are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line 
basis over the period of the lease. 
 
Finance leases 
 
Leases where the entity assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership, are classified as 
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the lower of fair 
value or the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease with an 
equivalent amount being stated as a finance lease liability. The capitalised amount is depreciated 
over the asset’s useful life. Lease payments are allocated between capital repayments and finance 
expenses using the effective interest rate method. 

 
1.16 Deferred income 
 

Deferred income relates to funds received for future expenditure to be incurred by the entity. The 
income is recognised in the period in which the related expenditure is incurred. 
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1.17 Interest bearing borrowings 
 

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. 
The discount or premium on the issue of loans is amortised over the period from acquisition to 
maturity so that a constant rate of interest is paid on the loan. The amortised amount is recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, with any 
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income over the period of the borrowings on the effective interest basis. 

 
1.18 Trade and other payables 
 

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. 

 
1.19 Provisions 
 

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when Bloem Water has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, where it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not made for future operating 
losses. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows that reflect current 
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. The increase in the provision due to a passage of time is recognised as finance costs. 

 
1.20 Other income 
 

Other income comprises of income that does not arise in the course of ordinary activities of Bloem 
Water. These other income items, inter alia, include skills development grant, profit on disposal of 
assets, employee rent and cost recoupments, insurance proceeds, etc. 
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2. Property, plant and equipment 
 

  
Vehicles 

and 
machinery 

 
 

Plant 
equipment 

 
Furniture 
and office 
equipment 

 
 
 

Roads 

 
Pipelines 

and 
reservoirs 

 
Land 
 and 

buildings 

Capital 
projects 

in 
progress 

 
 

Other 
assets 

 
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
          
Book value 
30 June 2011 

 
13 255 

 
39 536 

 
7 114 

 
1 625 

 
438 716 

 
44 952 

 
45 768 

 
175 

 
591 141 

          
Cost 20 257 76 915 11 070 2 253 901 900 66 367 45 768 1 289 1 125 820 
Accumulated 
depreciation 

 
(7 002) 

 
(37 378) 

 
(3 956) 

 
(628) 

 
(463 184) 

 
(21 416) 

 
- 

 
(1 114) 

 
(534 679) 

          
Movement 2012 4 806 (1 869) 1 352 (51) (15 843) 14 219 33 929 (175) 36 369 
Additions and 
capital projects 
capitalised 

 
 

6 743 

 
 

745 

 
 

2  937 

 
 

-   

 
 

13 111 

 
 

16 815 

 
 

29 488 

 
 

- 

 
 

69 839 
Borrowing costs 
capitalised 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
4 441 

 
- 

 
4 441 

Impairment/disposal 
- cost 

 
(2 460) 

 
(36) 

 
(1 036) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(3 532) 

Impairment/disposal 
- accumulated 
 depreciation 

 
 

2 213 

 
 

33 

 
 

719 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

2 965 
Depreciation (1 690) (2 611) (1 268) (51) (28 954) (2 596) - (175) (37 344) 
          
Book value 
30 June 2012 

 
18 061 

 
37 668 

 
8 466 

 
1 575 

 
422 873 

 
59 171 

 
79 697 

 
- 

 
627 510 

          
Cost 24 540 77 624 12 971 2 253 915 011 83 175 79 697 1 289 1 196 561 
Accumulated 
depreciation 

 
(6 478) 

 
(39 956) 

 
(4 505) 

 
(679) 

 
(492 138) 

 
(24 005) 

 
- 

 
(1 289) 

 
(569 050) 

          
Movement 2013 3 257 (311) 1 597 152 6 316 31 175 50 812 - 92 999 
Additions and 
capital projects 
capitalised 

 
 

5 989 

 
 

2 453 

 
 

3 182 

 
 

206 

 
 

36 234 

 
 

34 093 

 
 

44 315 

 
 

- 

 
 

126 472 
Borrowing costs 
capitalised 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
6 497 

 
- 

 
6 497 

Impairment/disposal 
- cost 

 
(1 131) 

 
- 

 
(72) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(1 203) 

Impairment/disposal 
- accumulated 
 depreciation 

 
 

476 

 
 

- 

 
 

49 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

525 
Depreciation (2 077) (2 764) (1 562) (54) (29 918) (2 918) - - (39 292) 
          
Book value 
30 June 2013 

 
21 319 

 
37 357 

 
10 062 

 
1 726 

 
429 189 

 
90 346 

 
130 509 

 
- 

 
720 509 

          
Cost 29 397 80 077 16 080 2 459 951 245 117 268 130 509 1 289 1 328 326 
Accumulated 
depreciation 

 
(8 079) 

 
(42 720) 

 
(6 018) 

 
(733) 

 
(522 056) 

 
(26 923) 

 
- 

 
(1 289) 

 
(607 817) 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
2. Property, plant and equipment (continued)    
     
 Borrowing costs on general borrowings are capitalised at an 

average rate of 8,47% (2012: 9,12%) on qualifying assets. No 
specific borrowings existed at year end. 

   

     
 Amounts capitalised during the year (refer to note 13) 6 497  4 441 
     
 · All assets, except for finance lease assets, are owned assets. 

· A register of all land and servitudes held by Bloem Water is 
available for inspection at the registered office of the entity. 

· The cost price of fully depreciated assets amounts to   
R2 045 698 (2012: R2 051 571). 

   

     
 Furniture and office equipment are stated at revalued amounts. 

The revaluation reserve is expected to realise through the sale of 
the revalued assets. If furniture and office equipment were 
measured using the cost model, the carrying amount would be as 
follows: 

   

     
 Cost 12 059  8 432 
 Accumulated depreciation and impairment (5 989)  (4 784) 
     
 Net carrying amount 6 070  3 648 
     
3. Inventories    
     
 Inventory comprise of the following:    
     
 Chemicals 2 433  2 013 
 Consumables 5 653  4 453 
 Water 1 338  1 653 
     
  9 424  8 119 
     
 The amount of inventories written-off to net realisable value 

through expenditure is Rnil (2012: R1 648) which is recognised in 
chemical expenditure. 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
     
4. Trade and other receivables    
     
 Trade receivables 49 196  75 181 
     
 Total trade receivables 106 736  115 893 
 Less: Provision for impairment (57 540)  (40 712) 
     
 Personnel loans and advances 22  17 
 Other project receivables 677  611 
     
  49 895  75 809 
     
 Trade receivables exceeding payment terms are interest 

bearing at the prime overdraft rate plus 200 basis points. 
Payment terms are generally 30 day from statement date. At 
year-end the prime overdraft rate was 8,50% (2012: 9%). 
Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables 
were as follows: 

   

 
 Individually and collectively impaired 
    R’000 
     
 Balance at 30 June 2011   44 010 
     
 Amount utilised – bad debts written off   - 
 Impairment reversed during the year   (3 298) 
     
 Balance at 30 June 2012   40 712 
     
 Balance at 30 June 2012   40 712 
     
 Amount utilised – bad debts written off   - 
 Impairment during the year   16 828 
     
 Balance at 30 June 2013   57 540 
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4. Trade and other receivables (continued)      
       
  Gross Impairment  Gross Impairment 
  2013 2013  2012 2012 
  R’000 R’000  R’000 R’000 
       

 At 30 June 2013, the age analysis for 
trade receivables is as follows: 

     

       

 Not past due 50 229 1 386  43 715 18 
 Past due 30 to 60 days 2 757 2 475  27 376 698 
 Past due 60 to 90 days 2 598 2 528  2 313 213 
 Past due more than 90 days 51 152 51 151  42 489 39 783 
       

 Total 106 736 57 540  115 893 40 712 
 
Based on historical default rates, the entity believes that no 
additional impairment allowances are necessary in respect of 
trade receivables. The past due amounts not impaired have been 
received subsequent to year-end. 
 

  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
5. Short term investments    
     
 ABSA Bank 70 086  50 000 
 Nedbank 56 238  56 017 
 Investec 50 217  50 000 
 FNB Corporate Bank -  20 006 
     
  176 541  176 023 
     

 These investments are held on call deposit accounts, 
which are all fixed for 3 months or less. The investments 
are not actively traded and are carried at amortised cost. 
Interest on these accounts varies between 5% and 6% per 
annum (2012: between 5% and 6% per annum). 

   

     
6. Cash and cash equivalents    
     
 Current account – First National Bank 4 801  9 558 
 Call account – First National Bank 55 344  20 775 
 Money Market account – Standard Bank 33 188  31 548 
 Money Market account – First National Bank 105  114 
 Petty cash on hand 20  20 
     
  93 458  62 015 
     

 Interest on these accounts varies between 0% and 4,9% per annum 
(2012: between 0% and 4,9% per annum). 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
7. Interest bearing loans and borrowings    
     
7.1 Development Bank of South Africa    
     
 Total amount outstanding 10 626  11 506 
 Less:  Current portion of loan (1 170)  (1 111) 
     
  9 456  10 395 
 The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 8,91% 

per annum.  Average capital repayments of R922 648 are made 
on a six monthly basis. The agreement came into effect on        
31 March 2006 and will continue until 31 March 2021. 

   

     
7.2 Development Bank of South Africa    
     
 Total amount outstanding 86 046  105 688 
 Less:  Current portion of loan (23 234)  (21 747) 
     
  62 812  83 941 
 The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 10% 

per annum. Average capital repayments of R14 510 734 are 
made on a six-monthly basis. The agreement came into effect on 
1 October 2006 and will continue until 30 September 2016. 

   

     
7.3 Nedbank    
     
 Total amount outstanding 60 864  65 413 
 Less:  Current portion of loan (5 020)  (4 595) 
     
  55 844  60 818 
 The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 9,12% 

per annum. Average capital repayments of R5 221 403 are made 
on a six-monthly basis. The agreement came into effect on 29 
December 2006 and will continue until 31 December 2021. 

   

7.4 Sanlam    
     
 Total amount outstanding 46 648  52 073 
 Less:  Current portion of loan (8 274)  (7 778) 
     
  38 374  44 295 
 The loan is unsecured and bears interest at the 6 month JIBAR 

rate plus 1,45%. Interest varied between 6,73% and 7,31% 
(2012: 7,27% and 7,31%) per annum.  The effective rate at 
30 June 2013 was 6,80% (2012: 7,31%). Average capital 
repayments of R4 326 742 are made on a six-monthly basis. The 
agreement came into effect on 9 August 2008 and will continue 
until 8 August 2018. 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
7. Interest bearing loans and borrowings    
     
7.5 Nedbank    
     
 Total amount outstanding 42 596  - 
 Less:  Current portion of loan (32 612)  - 
     
  9 984  - 
     
 The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 9,8% 

per annum. The loan facility amounts to approximately R270 
million and has a draw down arrangement. An additional 
seven draw downs ranging between R24,1 million and R41,3 
million will occur between 1 July 2013 and 1 November 2013. 
Average capital repayments of approximately R19,3 million 
are made on a six-monthly basis. The agreement came into 
effect on 1 March 2013 and will continue until 1 March 2023. 

   

     
7.6 Corporate credit card    
     
 Total amount outstanding 76  126 
 Less:  Current portion of loan (76)  (126) 
     
 Corporate Credit Card account -  - 
     
 The credit card account is unsecured and bears interest at the 

prime interest rate. At year-end the prime overdraft rate 
amounted to 8,50% (2012: 9%) per annum. 

   

     
7.7 Total loans and borrowings    
     
 Total amount outstanding 246 858  234 806 
 Less:  Current portion (payable within 12 months) (70 388)  (35 357) 
     
 Total long term interest bearing borrowings 176 470  199 449 
 
  



 

 

125 | P a g e  
 

Assuring sustainable provision of quality water services, for life! 
 

 

Bloem Water 
Notes to the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued) 
  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
8. Trade and other payables    
     

 Trade payables 10 561  6 772 
 Other payables 65 106  36 789 
     

 Accruals 46 792  20 593 
 SA Revenue Services – Value Added Tax 6 117  5 127 
 Cost recovery project 2 667  4 053 
 Leave accruals 9 530  7 016 
     

     

  75 667  43 561 
 Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are 

normally settled on 30-day terms. 
   

     
9. Taxation    
     

 No provision is made for taxation since Bloem Water is 
exempt from tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA) of the Income 
Tax Act. 

   

     
10. Revenue    
     

 Water sales 376 954  325 160 
     
10.1 Other income    
     

 Other income comprises of income that does not arise in the 
course of ordinary activities of Bloem Water. These other 
income items, inter alia, include skills development grant, 
profit on disposal of assets, employee rent and cost 
recoupments, insurance proceeds, etc. 

 
 
 
 

2 224 

  
 
 
 

4 505 
     
11. Operating profit    

     
 The following amounts have been included in operating profit:    
     
 Depreciation 39 292  37 344 
     

 Internal and external auditors’ remuneration 1 343  1 217 
     

 Increase / (decrease) in provision for impairment of trade 
receivables 

 
16 828 

  
(3 298) 

     

 Employee benefits relating to the pension fund assets and 
obligations 

 
10 246 

  
9 104 

     

 Actuarial losses   1 340  1 320 
 Interest cost on benefit obligation   9 995  9 734 
 Current service costs 

Expected return on plan assets 
 6 938 

 (8 027) 
 5 561 

(7 511) 
     
 Board member emoluments (refer to note 17) 495  390 
     
 Key management emoluments (refer to note 17) 10 400  7 930 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
12. Finance income    
     
 Investment income 10 188  11 593 
 Interest on trade receivables 4 018  5 304 
 Interest on cash and cash equivalents 2 500  2 412 
     

  16 706  19 309 
13. Finance costs    
     
 Interest on loans and borrowings 20 798  22 353 
 Borrowing costs capitalised (refer note 2) (6 497)  (4 441) 
 Other 2  22 
     

  14 303  17 934 
14. Notes to the statement of cash flows    
     
14.1 Cash flow from operating activities    
     
 Operating profit before finance income and costs 60 720  82 132 
     
 Adjusted for: 52 288  28 694 
     

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39 292  37 344 
 Increase in leave accrual 2 513  906 
 Increase / (decrease) in provision for impairment of 

trade receivables 
 

16 828 
  

(3 298) 
 Impairment of property, plant and equipment -  - 
 (Loss) / profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 584  (874) 
 Increase in defined benefit pension asset (6 929)  (5 384) 
     
 Movement in working capital 37 423  (30 017) 
     

 Increase in inventories (1 305)  (1 450) 
 Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 9 085  (37 411) 
 Increase in trade and other payables 29 643  8 844 
     
     

  150 431  80 809 
14.2 Cash and cash equivalents    
     
 For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and 

cash equivalents comprise of cash and cash equivalents and 
short term investments. 

   

     

 Cash and cash equivalents 93 458  62 015 
 Short term investments 176 541  176 023 
 Corporate Credit Card (76)  (126) 
     

  269 923  237 912 
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15. Financial instruments 
  
 General risk management principles 
  

 Risk management is of critical importance to the entity as it understands that changing market 
conditions make risk unavoidable.  Over the years the entity has sought and implemented a 
comprehensive risk management process to consistently identify, understand and properly 
manage risk at all times.  Risk policies, limits and control procedures are continuously 
monitored. 

  
 Credit risk 
  

 Potential concentrations of credit risk mainly consist of short term investments, cash and cash 
equivalents and trade and other receivables. 
 

The Board of Bloem Water limits the credit risk arising from short term investments and other 
cash items by dealing only with reputable well-established financial institutions in South 
Africa. Credit control procedures are in place which includes assessing credit worthiness of 
potential or existing customers. The financial positions of customers are monitored on an 
ongoing basis. Provisions are made for impairment allowances where deemed appropriate. 
 

At 30 June 2013, Bloem Water did not identify any significant concentration of credit risk 
which had not been insured or adequately provided for. The entity is exposed to significant 
credit risk exposure in terms of certain receivables due to the extensive period it takes to 
recover accounts receivable. 

  
 Concentration of credit risk of trade and other receivables 
  

 At year-end, the following concentrations of credit risk existed with reference to trade and 
other receivables: 

 

  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
     

 Mangaung Municipality 45 829  68 023 
 Kopanong Municipality 41 582  28 155 
 Naledi Municipality 16 908  17 370 
 Other 2 417  2 345 
     

  106 736  115 893 
     
 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum 

credit exposure. The following accounts are exposed to credit risk 
at the reporting date: 

   

     

 Trade and other receivables 49 896  75 809 
 Short term investments 176 541  176 023 
 Cash and cash equivalents 93 458  62 015 
     

  319 895  313 847 
     

 A maturity analysis of trade receivables are set out in note 4.    
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15. Financial instruments (continued)    
     
 Interest rate risk    
     
 Interest rate risk arises from aspects of the entities namely, variable rate interest bearing loans 

and short term investments. Interest rate fluctuation will directly impact on the results of the 
entity. The following table identifies those financial instruments that are sensitive to interest 
rate re-price: 

      
  

Variable rate interest bearing borrowings 
Interest rate 

per annum 
 2013 

R’000 
2012 

R’000 
      
 Variable rate interest bearing borrowings 6,73% to 7,31%  (46 648) (52 073) 
 
 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / 

(decreased) profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables 
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012. 

     
  Increase in interest rate  Decrease in interest rate 
  2013 2012  2013 2012 
  R’000 R’000  R’000 R’000 
       
 Variable rate interest bearing borrowings (466) (521)  466 521 
 
 · Loans and borrowings to the value of R204 262 000 (2012: R182 733 000) are fixed 

interest rate loans. Therefore a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect 
the profit or loss. 

 · Short term investments to the value of R176 541 000 (2012: R176 023 000) are fixed 
interest rate investments. Therefore a change in the interest rate at the reporting date would 
not affect the profit or loss. 

  
 Market risk 
  
 Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate with changing 

market prices whether caused by factors specific to the instrument or to general external market 
changes. The entity has no financial instruments which are affected by changing market prices. 

  
 Liquidity risk 
  
 Liquidity risk is the risk of the entity defaulting on its financial obligations as a result of 

insufficient funding capacity in relation to such obligations. The entity manages this risk 
through maintaining adequate working capital, planning and continuing re-planning of long 
term project costs and funding requirements. 
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15. Financial instruments (continued) 
  
 Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities 
  
 Apart from the long-term loans and borrowings, all the entity’s financial assets and liabilities 

are expected to mature within a twelve-month period. The undiscounted contractual cash flows 
of the long-term liabilities are set out below: 

 
  Within 12 

months 
Between 

1 to 5 years 
More than 

5 years 
  R’000 R’000 R’000 
     
 Nedbank 10 443 41 771 36 551 
 Nedbank 38 595 154 368 192 974 
 Development Bank of South Africa 29 021 72 529 - 
 Development Bank of South Africa 1 845 7 381 5 532 
 Sanlam 10 043 40 173 5 017 
     
 Total 89 947 316 222 240 074 
     
 The maturity of the contractual cash flows is the 

future undiscounted value. 
   

 
  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
 Capital management    
     
 The primary objective of the entity’s capital management is 

to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise 
stakeholder value. 

   

     
 Capital is monitored on the debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio.    
     
 Total debt 322 525  278 367 
 Less: Cash and cash equivalents (269 999)  (238 038) 
     
 Net debt 52 526  40 329 
     
 Total equity 747 299  684 177 
 Less: Subordinated debt instruments -  - 
     
 Adjusted capital 747 299  684 177 
     
 Debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio 7%  6% 
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15. Financial instruments (continued) 
  
 Foreign currency 
  

 The entity is not exposed to foreign currency risk as no transactions in foreign currency are 
entered into. 

  
 Fair values 
  

 The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair 
values. 

  
 Carrying amounts 
  

 Set out below are the carrying amounts of all the entity’s financial instruments that are carried 
in the financial statements: 

 

  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
 Financial assets    
     

 Trade and other receivables 49 896  75 809 
 Cash and cash equivalents 93 458  62 015 
 Short term investments 176 541  176 023 
     

  319 895  313 847 
     

 Financial liabilities    
     

 Interest bearing loans and borrowings – non-current 176 470  199 449 
 Trade and other payables 60 020  31 418 
 Current portion of interest bearing borrowings 70 388  35 357 
     

  306 878  266 224 
     

16. Employee benefits    
     

 The entity provides retirement benefits for all its permanent 
employees through a funded defined benefit pension scheme 
that is subject to the Pension Funds Act, 1956 as amended. 

   

     

 The following tables summarise the components of net benefit 
expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
and the funded status and amounts recognised in the statement 
of financial position for the respective plans: 

   

     

 Net benefit expense    
     

 Current service cost (6 938)  (5 561) 
 Interest cost on benefit obligation       (9 995)  (9 734) 
 Expected return on plan assets 8 028  7 511 
 Net actuarial loss recognised in the year (1 340)  (1 320) 
     

  (10 245)  (9 104) 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
16. Employee benefits (continued)    
     
     
 Present value of the defined benefit obligation (163 203)  (123 744) 
 Fair value of plan assets 124 624  95 025 
     
 Surplus of plan obligations over plan assets (38 579)  (28 719) 
     
 Actuarial gains/losses not recognised 58 576  41 787 
     
 Defined benefit asset 19 997  13 068 
     
 The principal actuarial assumptions used were: %  % 
     

 Discount rate 8,04  8,08 
 Salary increase rate 6,81  6,39 
 Expected rate of return on assets 8,04  8,08 
 Inflation 5,81  5,39 
 Pension increase allowance 2,10  2,55 
     
  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
 The assets of the fund as at the valuation date were invested 

as follows: 
   

     

 Prudential Inflation Plus 38 348  31 587 
 Coronation Managed 53 610  41 272 
 Sanlam Absolute Return 35 924  30 905 
 Cash at bank 2 455  3 876 
 Sundry creditors (5 713)  (12 615) 
     
 Total assets 124 624  95 025  
     
 Limits of the corridor:    
     

 Unrecognised actuarial gains at 1 July 41 787  37 899 
 Limits of the corridor (16 320)  (12 374) 
 Excess loss 42 256  29 413 
 Average remaining lifetime 23  22 
 Actuarial loss to be recognised (1 832)  (1 340) 
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  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
16. Employee benefits (continued)    
     

 Benefit liability    
     

 Present value of the defined benefit obligation at 1 July 123 744  113 313 
     

 Interest cost 9 995  9 734 
 Current service cost 6 938  5 561 
 Employee cost 2 826  2 333 
 Benefits paid (11 260)  (8 140) 
 Risk premiums -  - 
 Actuarial loss not recognised 30 960  942 
     

 Defined gains/benefit liability 163 203  123 744 
     

 Benefit asset    
     

 Fair value of the asset at 1 July 95 025  83 098 
     

 Expected return on assets 8 028  7 511 
 Contributions 20 000  16 821 
 Benefits paid (11 260)  (8 140) 
 Actuarial gains / (losses) not recognised 12 831  (4 265) 
     

 Present value of the asset 124 624  95 025 
 
 Sensitivity analysis    
     

 Assumed pension fund cost trends 
rates have a significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in profit or loss. 
A one percentage point change in 
assumed pension fund cost trends rates 
would have the following effects: 

   

    1% 
Increase 

Core 
assumption 

1% 
Decrease 

    R’000 R’000 R’000 
       

 Effect on service cost   69 6 938 (69) 
 Effect on interest cost   100 9 995 (100) 
 Effect on defined benefit obligation   1 632 163 203 (1 632) 
       
  2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 
  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
 Present value of defined benefit 

obligation 
 

(163 203) 
 

(123 744) 
 

(113 313) 
 

(97 163) 
 

(80 082) 
 Fair value of plan asset 124 624 95 025 83 098 72 808 62 169 
       

  (38 579) (28 719) (30 215) (24 355) (17 913) 
       
 There have been no experience adjustments made.    
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17. Directors and key management emoluments 
  
 The Board is responsible for, and undertook the following during the year ended 30 June 2013: 

 
- Adoption of strategic plan and monitoring of operation performance and management; 
- Determination of policy and processes to ensure the integrity of the entity’s risk 

management; and internal controls; communication policy and director selection; 
orientation and evaluation. 

  
 Non-executive directors with their remuneration for the financial year are as follows: 
 
 2013 

Board member 
Board 

activity fees 
Expense 

allowance 
Total 

remuneration 
  R R R 
     
 Mr TB Phitsane 120 146 1 592 121 738 
 Mr LR Bomela 23 220 941 24 161 
 Ms MSS Maboe Phike 58 671 1 007 59 678 
 Dr L Moorosi 55 035 2 776 57 811 
 Mr N Mokhesi 41 668 5 349 47 017 
 Mr DJC Sides 53 382 1 755 55 137 
 Dr J van der Merwe 103 134 26 563 129 697 
     
  455 256 39 983 495 239 
 
 2012 

Board member 
Board 

activity fees 
Expense 

allowance 
Total 

remuneration 
  R R R 
     
 Mr TB Phitsane 96 398 1 410 97 809 
 Mr LR Bomela 36 585 4 238 40 823 
 Ms MSS Maboe Phike 32 169 1 292 33 461 
 Dr L Moorosi 21 024 2 139 23 163 
 Mr N Mokhesi 42 393 5 151 47 544 
 Mr DJC Sides 27 839 1 278 29 117 
 Dr J van der Merwe 99 220 19 359 118 579 
     
  355 629 34 867 390 496 
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17. Directors and key management emoluments (continued) 
  
 Key management personnel with their remuneration for the financial year are as follows: 
 
  

2013 
Key management 

Short term 
employee 

benefits 

Other long 
term 

benefits 

 
Incentive 

bonus 

 
Total 

remuneration 
  R R R R 
      
 Dr B Malakoane 1 120 111  17 215 361 179 1 498 505 
 Dr L Moorosi    288 437  20 094           - 308 531 
 Mr OJ Stadler 1 046 573 197 283 307 770 1 551 626 
 Mr MD Kgwale 1 165 933 102 886 49 384 1 318 203 
 Mr E Gaoseb     941 028 187 346 222 112 1 350 486 
 Ms FKP Ntlemeza 1 129 665 143 483 74 076 1 347 224 
 Ms SL Meyer 1 154 244 70 834 296 303 1 521 381 
 Ms TP Kgantsi 1 006 187 202 010 296 303 1 504 500 
      
  7 852 178 941 151 1 607 127 10 400 456 
      
  

2012 
Key management 

Short term 
employee 

benefits 

Other long 
term 

benefits 

 
Incentive 

bonus 

 
Total 

remuneration 
  R R R R 
      
 Dr B Malakoane 1 365 467   20 958 398 346 1 784 771 
 Mr OJ Stadler    971 034 178 720 362 112 1 511 866 
 Mr MD Kgwale 199 604 - - 199 604 
 Ms FKP Ntlemeza    256 645   18 000 - 274 645 
 Mr LE van Rheede van Oudtshoorn    591 570 129 399 - 720 969 
 Mr E Gaoseb   436 408   80 780 - 517 188 
 Ms SL Meyer 1 024 904   74 327 357 819 1 457 050 
 Ms TP Kgantsi   896 525 210 055 357 819 1 464 399 
      
  5 742 157 712 239 1 476 096 7 930 492 
 

 Board meetings   
    
 Key management personnel are encouraged to attend board meetings. 8 Board meetings were 

held and attended as follows: 
  

2013 
Board member 

Board 
meetings 
attended 

Board activities 
/ committee 

meetings 
    
 Mr LR Bomela 2 7 
 Mr TB Phitsane 5 8 
 Ms MMS Maboe Phike 4 8 
 Dr L Moorosi 5 8 
 Mr N Mokhesi 5 8 
 Mr DJC Sides 0 14 
 Dr J van der Merwe 5 18 
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17. Directors and key management emoluments (continued)   
  

2012 
Board member 

Board 
meetings 
attended 

Board activities 
/ committee 

meetings 
    
 Mr LR Bomela 6 7 
 Mr TB Phitsane 6 7 
 Ms MSS Maboe Phike 3 7 
 Dr L Moorosi 5 3 
 Mr N Mokhesi 7 7 
 Mr DJC Sides 1 6 
 Dr J van der Merwe 7 18 
    
17.1 Number of employees   
    
 According to the payroll system the entity had 276 (2012: 257) permanent employees as at             

30 June 2013. 
 
18. Commitments and contingencies    
  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
 Commitments    
     

 Estimated capital expenditure 267 707  549 447 
     
 Approved and contracted 94 014  73 635 
 Approved not yet contracted 173 693  475 811 
     
 The expenditure is expected to be incurred as follows: 267 707  549 447 
     
 Within one year 201 407  260 347 
 Between one and five years 66 300  289 100 
     
 Capital commitments, excluding interest capitalised, include 

all projects for which specific Board approval has been 
obtained up to the reporting date. Projects still under 
investigation for which specific Board approval has not yet 
been obtained are excluded. 

   

     

 The expenditure will be financed through specific external 
borrowings, available cash resources and internally generated 
funds. 

   

     

 Guarantees    
     

 Guarantees amounting to R20 000 (2012: R20 000) was issued 
by First National Bank on behalf of Bloem Water. The 
guarantee will lapse in 2025. The beneficiary of these 
guarantees is Eskom. 

   

     

 Guarantees amounting to R80 000 (2012: R80 000) was issued 
by First National Bank on behalf of Bloem Water. The 
guarantees will lapse in 2025. The beneficiary of these 
guarantees is Centlec. 
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19. Related parties   
    

 Bloem Water purchases raw water from the Department of Water Affairs (“the Department”). 
All entities and directorates of the Department are seen as related parties to Bloem Water.  
Water sales are made to Municipalities in the Free State Province. 
 

The Board members and key management, as identified in note 17, are considered related 
parties. 
 

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into 
with related parties for the related financial year: 

 
     

  2013  2012 
  R’000  R’000 
 Statement of comprehensive income    
     

 Transactions with the Department of Water Affairs    
     

 Amounts paid for water abstraction 20 956  21 555 
 Amounts paid for water research 

Amounts paid for catchment management 
4 440 

387 
 3 596 

373 
     

 Transactions with other related parties    
     

 Amounts paid to Eskom and Centlec for electricity 65 742  51 392 
 Water sales to Municipalities 365 835  314 795 
     

 Board members’ and key management emoluments are set 
out in note 17. 

   

     
 Statement of financial position    
     

 Amounts owed to The Department of Water Affairs 16 474  13 220 
     

 Amounts owed by Municipalities (refer note 15) 104 552  113 709 
     
20. Operating leases    
     
 The entity rents printing equipment under long term non-

cancellable operating leases since January 2013. 
   

     
 Minimum future lease payments    
     
 Within one year 707  - 
 Two to five years 2 474  - 
 More than five years -  - 
     
  3 181  - 
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21. Events after the balance sheet date 
  
 There were no significant events that have occurred between the reporting date and the date 

of signing the financial statements. 
  
22. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
  
 During the period under review no fruitless and wasteful expenditure have been identified. 
  
23. Going concern 
  
 The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to 

a going concern. 
  
24. Contingent liabilities 
  
 Bloem Water is involved in a number of pending arbitration matters. No liability has been 

recognised in the financial statements because management is of the view that the existence 
of the possible obligations will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
uncertain future events not within the control of Bloem Water. 
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 2013  2012 
 R’000  R’000 
    
    
Revenue 376 954  325 160 
    

Bulk water sales 376 954  318 452 
Agreements -  6 708 
    
Water purchased (26 099)  (25 272) 
    
Water opening stock 1 653  1 400 
Water closing stock (1 338)  (1 652) 
Water resource expenditure 25 784  25 524 
    

    
Gross income 350 855  299 889 
    
Other operating income 2 224  4 505 
    
Commission income 406  223 
Game and grazing sales -  - 
Service agreement 528  432  
Other income 1 568  2 675 
Rental income 306  300 
Profit on sale of assets (584)  875 
    
(Impairment) / reversal of impairment of trade receivables (16 828)  3 298 
    
Expenses    
    
Chemicals (13 828)  (14 566) 
Depreciation (39 292)  (37 344) 
Distribution costs (11 702)  (9 152) 
    
Fuel costs 4 392  3 214 
Vehicle and transport costs 7 310  5 938 
    
Energy (65 742)  (51 393) 
Repairs and maintenance (9 204)  (10 513) 
Staff costs (97 676)  (79 659) 
    

Leave accrual 2 513  906 
Medical expenses 3 577  3 027 
Salaries and wages 90 001  72 842 
Training and development 1 026  780 
Actuarial gains and losses 559  2 104 
 
  

Schedule not covered by audit opinion 
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 2013  2012 
 R’000  R’000 
    
Other operating expenses (38 087)  (22 933) 
    
Advertising 952  454 
Audit fees 1 343  1 217 
Bank charges 82  99 
Bursaries and donations 54  6 
Cleaning costs 42  87 
Computer and IT expenditure 3 713  3 149 
Conference seminars and workshops costs 1 408  849 
Consulting costs 1 849  699 
Contractors 297  315 
Courier and postage 7  7 
Game purchases 34  18 
General and administration expenses 2 121  744 
Impairment – property, plant and equipment -  - 
Insurance 884  890 
Legal and contract costs 2 734  2 408 
Marketing costs 1 873  929 
Printing and stationary 1 634  1 141 
Programmes and initiatives 8 709  6 283  
Protective clothing and uniforms 873  990 
Rates and taxes -  1 
Relocation costs 63  85 
Rent paid – heavy duty equipment 7  15 
Safety and security 1 692  847 
Service contracts 91  129 
Subscriptions licenses and membership fees 267  205 
Telephone and fax 987  928 
Tools and equipment 397  454 
Travelling and entertainment 3 775  1 535 
VAT provision 2 201  (1 546) 
    
    
Operating profit 60 720  82 131 
    
Finance income 16 706  19 309 
Finance expenses (14 303)  (17 934) 
    
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 14 301  17 912 
Finance charges payable under finance leases -  21  
Other finance costs 2  1 
    
    
Profit for the year 63 123  83 507 
    
Total comprehensive income for the year 63 123  83 507 

Schedule not covered by audit opinion 
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REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
DRIVERS PERFORMANCE 

OBJECTIVE 
OUTCOMES/ 
IMPACT 

INDICATORS MEASURE TARGET ACTUAL TARGET 
MET(√)/NOT 

MET (X) 
Ensuring sustainable 
and equitable water 
resource 
management  

1. Water Quality 
Compliance 

% Water Quality 
standards met 

Tests results, 
SANS 241 

% 
Compliance 

95% Modder River 
Region 
Micro 99.9% 
Chemical 99.9% 
 
Orange River 
Region 
Micro 99.9% 
Chemical 99.99% 
 
Caledon River 
Region 
Micro 97.8% 
Chemical 99.9% 
 
Overall Average: 
Micro 99.2% 
Chemical 99.9% 

√ 

Ensuring sustainable 
and equitable water 
resource 
management  

2. Non Revenue 
water 

Reduced levels of 
unaccounted for 
water (UAW) 

Water lost as a % 
of total water 
produced 

% 13% Total Bloem Water – 
10.17% 
 
CRR – 12.63% 
 
MRR – 5.68% 
 
ORR – 6.15% 

√ 
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DRIVERS PERFORMANCE 
OBJECTIVE 

OUTCOMES/ 
IMPACT 

INDICATORS MEASURE TARGET ACTUAL TARGET 
MET(√)/NOT 

MET (X) 
Build, Operate and 
maintain 
infrastructure 
  

3. Reliability of Supply 
 

No unplanned 
interruptions to 
supply exceeding 
24 hours 

Number of days 
supply disrupted 
divided by total 
number of possible 
supply days 

% 2% 0% interruptions 
 

Refer to 
Annexure C 

√ 
 

Managing financial 
affairs to meet 
current and future 
obligations  

4. Financial Reporting 
Compliance 

Unqualified audit 
report 

Annual external 
audit 

Qualified/ 
unqualified 

Unqualified Unqualified √ 

Transformation/ 
business 
process/research 
and development  

5. Staff Turnover Optimal staff 
retention 

% staff leaving % 4% 2% √ 

Transformation/ 
business 
process/research 
and development 

6. Board member 
meeting attendance 

Improved 
performance of 
fiduciary 
duties/Governance 

Actual attendance  % 95% 78.77% x 

Ensuring sustainable 
and equitable water 
resource 
management  

7. Effective Internal 
Controls and risk 
management 

Internal Audit 
findings dealt with 

Internal Audit 
reports 

No repeat 
and 

unresolved 
findings 

No 
unresolved 

0 √ 

Ensuring sustainable 
and equitable water 
resource 
management 

8. Bulk supply 
agreements concluded 
with 
Municipalities/other 
customers 

Statutory and 
Service level 
agreements in 
place 

Municipalities/other 
customers with bulk 
supply agreements 

% 100% 50% x 

Managing financial 
affairs to meet 
current and future 
obligations   

9. Improve Financial 
performance 

Improved viability 
and sustainability 
 

Financial Ratio’s Refer 
Annexure A 

 

Refer 
Annexure A 

Refer Annexure A X 
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DRIVERS PERFORMANCE 
OBJECTIVE 

OUTCOMES/ 
IMPACT 

INDICATORS MEASURE TARGET ACTUAL TARGET 
MET(√)/NOT 

MET (X) 
Managing financial 
affairs to meet 
current and future 
obligations  
 
Transformation 

10. Increased 
BBBEE Spend 

% of spend increased 
and increased new 
entrants   

Quarterly reports % increase 
 
 
 
 

12% 
 

252% √ 

# new 
entrants 

50 82 √  

Managing financial 
affairs to meet 
current and future 
obligations 

11. Manage cost 
within the 
approved budget 

No over 
expenditure/losses 

Financial reports % variance 10% 10% √ 

Build, Operate and 
maintain 
infrastructure 
 
Engaging in 
Strategic 
Partnerships  

12. Capital 
Expenditure 

Infrastructure 
available to meet 
demands 

Overall project 
expenditure 
within R target 
 

% variance 25% 44% x  

Overall project 
completion dates 
within targets 

% variance 25% 11% √ 

Build, operate and 
maintain 
infrastructure 
 
Engaging in 
Strategic 
Partnerships 

13. Increased 
access to services 

Contribution to 
national objectives 

CAPEX spend/ 
projects 

CAPEX spend 
or number of 

expansion 
projects 

80% 87% √ 

Managing financial 
affairs to meet 
current and future 
obligations  
  

14. Engagement in 
Secondary 
activities 

Extent of involvement % of total 
turnover 

% of total 
turnover 

N/A N/A N/A 

Engage in Strategic 
Partnerships 

15. Achieve 
Statutory 
Reporting 
Compliance 

Reporting compliance 
achieved 

Statutory 
submissions 
made on time 

Submission 
dates 

met/missed 

Meet all 
statutory 

requirements 

Met √ 
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DRIVERS PERFORMANCE 
OBJECTIVE 

OUTCOMES/ 
IMPACT 

INDICATORS MEASURE TARGET ACTUAL TARGET 
MET(√)/NOT 

MET (X) 
Build, operate and 
maintain 
infrastructure 

16. Jobs Created Permanent and contract 
(direct) 

Total number Number 11 32 √ 

Temporary (indirect) Total number Number 36 716 √ 

Engage in Strategic 
Partnerships 

17. Corporate 
Social 
Responsibility 

Good corporate 
citizenship 

Number of 
initiatives 

Number 
and R 
value 

3 
R3.5 million 

5 
R3.551 million 

 

Transformation 18. Training and 
skills development 

Skills and capacity 
building 

Training 
courses 
 
Learnerships 
 
Bursaries 

Total 
Number 

28 
 
 

35 
 
5 

47 
 
 

16 
 
5 

x 

Managing financial 
affairs to meet 
current and future 
obligations 

19. Good 
Governance 

Improved controls and 
risk mitigation  
meetings 

Breaches of 
materiality and 
significance 
framework 

Number 0 0 √ 

 
Brief description of targets, including reasons for the non-achievement of the target performance objectives: 
 
1. Water resources are of major environmental, social and economic, value to Bloem Water. Quality determines the level of health of 

consumers, therefore achieving and sustaining compliance to the standards are monitored and managed on a daily basis. The 
actual quality compliance for the three regions exceeded the target of 95%. 

 
2. The non-revenue water (NRW) target was contained below the 13% target through operational efficiencies in a continued drive to 

reduce the levels of unaccounted for water. Non revenue water is water that has been produced and is “lost” before it reaches the 
customer. Losses can be real losses (through leaks, sometimes also referred to as physical losses) or apparent losses (for example 
through theft or metering inaccuracies). High levels of NRW are detrimental to the financial viability of water utilities, as well to 
the quality of water itself. NRW is typically measured as the volume of water "lost" as a share of net water produced. However, it 
is sometimes also expressed as the volume of water “lost” per km of water distribution network per day. 
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3. Sufficient reservoir levels were maintained to ensure continuous supply during emergencies/unplanned interruptions. Supply was 

also maintained through other schemes.  36 Hours of supply is in order to allow for planned maintenance which supply can be 
further augmented from other schemes if required. Refer Annexure C for a schedule of average, minimum and maximum reservoir 
levels for the year. 

 
4. This KPI was achieved and the external auditors did not express any significant reservation in respect of matters contained in the 

Financial Statements. 
 
5. Optimal staff retention is important for Bloem Water as an employer to maintain a strong knowledgebase, experience and to 

promote stability.  High employee turnover increases expenses and also has a negative effect on company morale. The staff 
turnover measured at 2% for the year which is indicative that key workers remained employed whilst job performance and 
productivity were maintained. 

 
6. Good Governance practices are promoted by the Board of Bloem Water. Even though the target of 95% was not achieved, an 

attendance level of 78.77% was sufficient to facilitate good oversight and informed resolutions. 
 
7. There were not repeat and unresolved audit findings in the period under review. Internal controls and risk management practices 

were sufficient to verify accuracy of operational/financial data and accountability to stakeholders. 
 
8. Bulk supply agreements were finalized and signed with Kopanong and Mantsopa Municipalities. Naledi Municipality requested a 

workshop to engage on the draft Service Level Agreement, which workshop is scheduled for 25 October 2013.  There is ongoing 
engagement on the Mangaung Bulk Agreement and the matter was elevated to Board and Council level with the involvement of 
COGTA.  

 
9. Refer to Annexure A 
 
10. BBBEE spending increased by 252% and the number of new entrants measured at 82 compared to a target of 50. This sustained 

improvement can be attributed to a concerted effort to award contracts to suppliers who are BBBEE compliant.   
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11. A favourable variance on actual expenditure versus budget was achieved.  Expenditure of 90% was recorded per the figures 

included in the financial statements compared to the budget. 
 
12. The target was not met and a variance of 44% was achieved. Expenditure measured at 56% and continued effort is made to 

expedite infrastructure spending and management. The main reasons the target was not met is due to delays in procurement of 
services providers having had to attend bid committee processes on the handling of arithmetic errors, development of quality 
criteria in assessing the ability of service providers to execute the projects and engagement with the Engineering Council of South 
Africa regarding the appointment of consultants. 

 
13. Bloem Water is contributing to national objectives on increased access to services.  A target of 80% was achieved for CAPEX and 

number of expansion projects undertaken. The percentage is calculated based on the number of expansion projects on which 
Bloem Water incurred expenditure during the financial year. 

 
14. Not applicable and no current involvement in secondary activities. 
 
15. Refer to Annexure B 
 
16. The job creation target was exceeded due to prioritising the filling of technical vacancies, in particular process controllers and 

artisans, in support of improved operational performance.   
 
17. A number of community initiatives were undertaken in response to Bloem Water’s corporate social responsibility. These projects 

include school sanitation projects across the province.   
 
18. The target on learnerships was not achieved due to having employed deserving learners who successfully completed their 

respective NQF courses. A total of 23 learners were employed which therefore reduced the number of new learnership recruits in 
the period. Learnership recruitment for 2013/14 is in process. 

 
19. There were no breaches of materiality and significance to be reported for the period. 
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ANNEXURE A 

RATIO’S 2012/13 
RATIO TARGET ACTUAL TARGET 

MET/NOT MET 

NOTE 

Liquidity (current ratio) 2.56 2.25 x The cash position is lower than anticipated due to non 

payment by municipalities. The short term portion of new 

borrowings increased above the anticipated amount in 

accordance with the revised loan structure. 

Gross profit margin % 

(PA) 

93.7% 93.08% x Abstraction ratio between bulk treated and raw water not 

aligned to budgeted volume, hence increased the raw 

water cost. 

Net profit margin % (PA) 3.58% 16.11% √ Finance cost lower due to the structuring of the new loan.  

Debt/equity ratio 0.69 0.43 √ Loan funding aligned to reprioritised plan. 

Return on assets % 0.041 0.057 √ Capex funds committed for refurbishment of existing 

infrastructure. 

Debtors days 42.3 48.31 x Overdue payments by Kopanong and Naledi Local 

Municipalities: it was anticipated that the accounts would 

have been settled during the year. Naledi has been paying 

the current accounts for a number of months. Kopanong 

has made a few part payments during the year of current 

accounts. 
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ANNEXURE B 

ACHIEVE STATUTORY REPORTING COMPLIANCE 
STATUTORY REQUIREMENT DUE DATE TARGET MET/NOT MET 

 

Annual report 30 November 2012 √ 

Quarterly reports 

· Quarter 1 

· Quarter 2 

· Quarter 3 

· Quarter 4 

 

15/11 

15/02 

15/05 

15/08 

√ 

Business Plan  30 April 2013 √ 

Shareholders Compact 30 April 2013 √ 

Tariffs: Ministerial Approval  25 January 2013 √ 

Treasury: Consolidated Financial Statements 31 May 2013 √ 

Workplace Skills Plan  30 June 2013 √ 

Employment Equity Plan  15 January 2013 √ 

Tax returns 

· PAYE 

· VAT 

· UIF 

· IRP 5’s 

 

Monthly 

 

Monthly 

May 2013 

√ 

Compensation Commissioner: Return of earnings  31 March 2013 √ 

Pension Fund payments  Within 7 days of month-end √ 
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ANNEXURE C 

RELIABILITY OF SUPPLY 
Reservoir Average level for the year Minimum level for the year Maximum level for the year 

Tabale 84.97% 75.86% 89.57% 

Lesaka 86.96% 76.50% 95.84% 

OK 72.74% 68.30% 77.05% 

Blydskap 80.67% 76.79% 87.40% 

Motlatla 88.01% 83.77% 93.36% 

Bethulie 2Ml 75.36% 65.40% 82.76% 

Bethulie TLC 87.31% 77.20% 93.52% 

Springfontein 75.71% 60.53% 84.95% 

Trompsburg 48.98% 15.52% 95.09% 

Gariep 78.12% 60.20% 100.00% 

Welbedacht Clear Water Bal 41.97% 0.00% 81.33% 

Dehoek 83.48% 77.38% 89.76% 

Dewetsdorp 63.43% 56.56% 70.65% 

Uitkyk 73.33% 70.02% 78.02% 

Reddersburg 64.57% 55.27% 68.44% 

Edenburg 55.05% 33.73% 70.33% 

Brandkop 68.46% 46.23% 86.86% 

 



 

2 Mzuzu Street, Pellissier, Bloemfontein, 9322, Tel: (051) 403-0800, Fax: (051) 422-5333 

Email: info@bloemwater.co.za, Website: www.bloemwater.co.za 
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